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Vision

To emerge as a premier financial institution,
fostering socio-economic development of the
people of AJK.
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Mission Statement

To acquire market leadership through quality banking services,
customized products, best business practices, merit and performance
culture and participation in ¢ prment process of the state for the

ing of its people.

A“ /www.bankajk.com
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Raja Muhammad Farooq Haider Khan
Prime Minister AJ&K

Message

At The Bank of Azad Jammu and Kashmir, we have always been committed to build sustainable
long-term partnerships with customers and adopt an innovative banking approach while
remaining loyal to our nalion’s heritage and cantributing to the overall development of the
AJK

The enlire responsibility of policy formulalion and management has been placed, under the
law, wilh the Board ol Direclors. Further. | have given special instruclions 1o lhe polilicians and
bearucracy not to'interfere in the affairs of the bank. thereby, ousting the possibility of any
pressure which may be put on the Bank's management in respect to recruitment of staff and
provision of credil, We are happy o say thal these instructions have become an essential parl
of the culture of the bank.

Like as the Government of Azad Kashmir adheres to following a policy based on merii, social
justice and equity, | would like fo impress upon the Bank's management fo place premium
on efficiency and professionalism. At the same time, it is my desire that all branches of the
Bank should be placed in ideal environmenis for maximum output and must be equipped in
accordance with good standards providing highly pleasant atmosphere for elficient working.
Addedly, the Bank must sef strategically fo disperse its credit on a fair and equitable basis with
a view to, inter-alia, easing the socio-economic tensions.

Certainly. development and sustaining economic growth of any country is the responsibility of
its government. To me, it is the prime liability porticularly for the State of Azad Kashmir because
unless all cur efforts are dedicated towards economic development of the State, betterment
of the lot of the poor and the establishment of a society on a self-sustaining basis will continue
to remain a vision.

| must comment that a large chunk of economic activity takes place with in geographical
boundaries of Azad Kashimir. It is, therefore, obvious that fremendous business potential exists
in the State and thus the scope of the Bank of Azad Jammu & Kashmir will be extensive, For all
reqasons of rhymes, | am cerfainly convinced that the Bank of Azad Jammu & Kashmir is likely
to play a vital rale in the economy of the State through mobilization of hitherto untapped local
resources, promoling savings and providing tunds for investment in tfrade. commerce, industry
and agriculture with primary emphasis on accelerated development of agro-based industry.
If the achievement of the Bank, at its infancy stage, is taken as an indicator, the forth coming
years will Insha Allah witness tfremendous expansion and herald a new era of progressive
banking and professional competence, aiding in the economic development of the Stafe
and thereby of Pakistan.

ASI JWww.bankalk.com . . - www.bankajk.com ‘




A WORD FROM THE
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Bank of Azad Jammu and Kashmir is a fast growing commercial bank and
emerging brand on the financial landscape of AJ&K state treading sturdily
with a mission of fostering the socio-economic development of people of the
region. In view of growing trust of its customers and high vision of stakeholders
in the backdrop of stated policy of the government of AJ&K, the bank has a
bright future going forward.

A lot has changed since BAJK started its operations in 2005 with its 1st Branch
in Muzaffarabad. The Bank has expanded its outreach to 65 locations in all
districts of state, some in far off places where other commercial banks are not
present; one thing which has never changed is its focus to change the socio
economic conditions of the people of the State. Ever since its inception, we
have remained committed to serve the people with enthusiasm, dedication
and highest sense of responsibility. During this period we have been able
to earn the trust of our valued customers, who by choice established their
banking relationship with us.

Historically, the State of Azad Jammu and Kashmir, due to itsimmense potential
for deposits and home remittances has remained an attractive place for
banks and financial institutions for doing business. Due to its scenic beauty,
lush green forests and gushing rivers, its valleys are attracting thousands of
tourists each year from all over the world. The region due to its geography and
climate has also lof of potential for growing medicinal herbs, nuts, silkworms,
honey bee farming, fruits and vegetables besides core agro-activities
including poultry, livestock, and farming. However, the existing banking and
financial infrastructure despite its visible presence and sizeable operations has
not been able to support the state economy. Here, the Bank of AJK despite
its smaller size is vigorously concentrating on supporting the people in doing
business in agriculture, SMEs, poultry, livestock, tourism, healthcare sectors. In
a way unlike other commercial banks operating in AJK whatever savings are
mobilized by BAJK are channelized here in the state economy to develop
entrepreneaurship within the territory.

Qur financials for the year 2016 on account of its customer franchise
and lending activities depict encouraging sign for the bank to foresee
a prosperous future. Here | would like to avail this opportunity to thank the
Prime Minister Government of AJK, the Chairman and the Board for providing
guidance and support to the Bank wherever it was required. During the year
the team also worked with lot of dedication, commitment and devotion to
materialize the results for which they deserve compliments. The Bank going
forward, is endeavoring to concentrate on technology upgrade, training and
development of human capital, product innovation and service quality all
directed to enrich competitiveness and sustainability of operations. All this can
be materialized with unequivocal reaffirmation by us at all levels for emerging
as “one bank cne team".

Imran Samad

‘ 0 www.bankajk.com www.bankajk.com ‘
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Dr. ljaz Munir
Chief Secretary AJK/Chairman

Dr. ljoz Munir s Chief Secretary ta the
Government. of Arad Jammu and
Kashrmir and Chairman BAJK. He s o
senior-civil servant belonging fo the
BMG Group. He has vast experience
in management and adminstration
at his credit which includes various
top hierarchy administrative positions.
He served as Addifional Secretary
at the Prime Minister's. Secretariat
Govemment of Pakistan and Secretary
16 Govemment of Punjab before his
new assignment. He holds o Maosters
Degree n Business Adminisiration and
Managemenl  from Imperial College
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Imran Samad
Managing Director/CEQ

M Imrcin Samad has joined the Bank of
Arad lammu & Kashmir on November
29, 2016 as the CEO & Managing
Diractor. He hos been associated with
fhe banking profession for over fhree
decades. After his MBA, he started his
careerwith PICIC as a financial analyst
and worked in wvarious capacifies
dealing with industry and finance.
He has rich experience of dedling
with local banks and  multilatenal
agencies. His expertise in Corporate
Finance, Retall Barking, Consurner
Finance, Islamic Banking, Agricullure
Finance, SME . Micro Credit, efc. over
the yaars in varous banks hos earned
him o repute in areas of business
development and orgonizational
tumaoround. Recognized a5 an
effective team leader, he has authored
vanous articles and is also known asa
leading resource person on banking
and finance. He has served WNIB Bank
as a senior Bxeculive and had been
associoled in turming around The Bank
of Khyber in the capacity of Group
Head, CMG, Group Head, Business
Memagerment and: alse as Managing
Director.

Farid Ahmad Tarar
Director

hrForid Ahmod Torar 5 Secrelary o the
Govemment of Azod Jarmimu and Kashimir
heading the Fnonce Depatment. Me
Tarer 5 a senior ol servant belonging
fo the Pokiston Audt ond Accounts
Group. He has worked in different sanior
positions including Commercial Courselor
. Embassy of Pakistan, Rome aly, He has
attended  vaiows ranings/ courses on
audit and accounts inchading 20t Senior
Management  Course(lahone),  Course
on Sociol Safety  Nefs{Waoshington DC
ol Waordd Bonk Heodguorters) Economic
Policy and Monogementiirtemational Lini,
Mational Irstitute of Pulbic  Adminisinotion,
Kualalurmpur hcicnysic), Serninc/
Workshop on Publc: Pivate  Parfnership
s an Istument of  Economic  Growth
and Productivity  [ntemational  Finance
Commission Headquariers Dubal), Project
Management  (Business  Management
Corsultants, USA) and much more. He has
more fhan 20 yeaors of experience in puicic
sector encompassng aeas of Pulbic Polcy,
Finance, Texation, Trode, Fscal, Monetary,
Economic & Investmenl Policy’s design,
development. and  implementation i,
Tarar did his MB.BS([King Faward Medical
College, Lahore), MBA Fnance (Insfitute
of Budness  Adminkfrofion  Universty  of
Punjab) and MSC Accounting & France,
Manchester Busness School, Univerity of
Manchester, UK.
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Fayyaz Ali Abbasi
Director

mAr Fayyoz All Abbaosi holds a Masters
Degres in Development Managemeant
from London School of Economics and
FPofticle Science and also a Masters
of Philosophy({M. Phil.) Degree in
Imternational Relations and Affairs from
Guaid-e-Azam  University, Bslamabad.
He s cumently serving as 3enior Member
Board of Revenue, Governmeni of
Arad Jammu and Kashmir, M Abbasi
has vast experience in management,
administration and planning to his credit
which inciudes various top hierarchy
adminishiative positions. He headed
various  departments as  Secretary/
Commissioner fo Government of Azad
Jammu and Kashmir.

Syed Zahoor-ul-Hassan Gillani
Director

Syved  faohoorubHassan  Gilanl s
secretary lo the Government of Arad
Jammu and Kashmin heading  the
Forests, Widlife, Fisheries and AKLASC
Departments. He has served on vanous
importont  administrafive  positions in
the state. He ik aiko on the board of
Directors of Azad Kashmir Logging and
Sawmills Corporafion [AKLASC).

Amjad Pervaiz Ali khan
Director

M. Amjad Pervaiz Al Khan s Secrelay
lo the Governmen! ol Azod Jammu
and Kashmin heading the Industies,
Commerce, Mineral Resowrces and
Labor Departments. He hos served
in wvarious imporfant  positions. M.
Khan acfively pursued expanding
his knowiledge: base ‘while in service,.
He holds o mosters degree in' Public-
administration(MPA]  from  reputed e
Punjobx Universify. o




Ejaz Hussain Rathore
Director

Mr. Ejaz Hussain Rathore is a feflow
Member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan. He s in public
practice since 1990, and is Pariner-
incharge of blomabad Cfficé of PKF
FRAMTS. Pokistan & Afghanistan
d Accountants, a member
EF Infemational  providing
essicnal services in the fields of
?535 ounting, tax and business
ment consultancy, Transaction
‘merger and acquisition, [T

efration festing, to o wide
al clentele. Taxation and
consultancy are the fields of
Cial inferest. Mr. Rathore has

m:gﬂnimfwns representing
rnment Interests. He has also
a delegate in many

Raja Mumtaz Ali
Director

Rojo pMumitaz Al has been recently
ploced as Director on the Board of
the Bank by Govt. of AJK. He Is a Law
Graduate and also obtoined Diploma
in Bonking from Institute of Bonkers
Pakistan (IBF). He hasrich and diversified
expenance In Banking and held Middle
and Top Management positions af
Alied Bank Lid. His experience in
Banking spreads over a period of four
decadaes,

He has the honor to be the ploneer
first Managing Director/Chiel Executive
of BAJK, During initial crifical pericd of
the Bank he successfully erected the
structure of the Bank on sound footing
and in a very short span made jl a
viable and profitable Bank of the state.
He served the Bank for five yeaors (e,
from September 2006 to August 2011],
leaving behind the record of success
and score of signiicant achievements.
His presence on the Boord shall prove
highly beneficial o provide valuable
guidance in evolving workable

strategies ter further development and:

arowth of the Bank.

Naveed Sadiq
Director

Mr. Maveed Sadiq has been recently
placed as Director on the Board of the
Bank by Govl. of AJK. He is a repulable
business man bringing with him rich
and diversified experience in the fields
of construction, import export and real
estate in international business: hukb ni
Dubai. After coming. lo Puk:s'mn wu
back in 2009 he has luriﬁqr iy

his enfrepreneurial pursuits By r
micrketing and tourism
his business domain. Presenti
of Trans Freight and industria
Lid. He s a wedl td@alé_&
Innovative mind and en
insight.

BAJK

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Dr. ljoz Munir, Chief Secretary, AJEK

Chairmman

Imran Samad, CEC, BAJK Managing Director
Farid Ahmad Tarar, Secretary Finance, AJAK Director

Fayaz Ali Abbasi, SMBR, AJRK Directar
Zahoor-ul-Hassan Gillani, Secretary Forests, Wildlife, Fishries & AKLASC. AJ&K Director

Raja Amjad Pervaiz Ali Khan, Secretary Industies, Commerce, Director

Mineral Resources & Labour, AJEK

Ejaz Hussain Rathore, Chartered Accountant Director

Raja Mumitaz Ali, Banker Director

Naveed Sadiq, Businessman Director

Faric hrchur{:.r .

Chairman
Imran Sarmad Member
Raja Amjad Pervaiz Ali Khan Member

Fayyaz All Abbasi Chairman
Farid Ahrmad Tarar Member
Ejaz Hussain Rathore Memier

Raja Amjad Pervaiz Al Khan

Chairman
Imran Samad Member
Sved Iahoor-ul-Hassan Gillani Member
Ejaz Hussain Rathore Member

T —

AFFergusan & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Bank Square. Chattar Domel, Muzaffarabad AJK

WWW.banka wwm‘
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Management Functionaries

Special Assets Management Information Technology
Division Division

Client
Service
Management

Leadership

Managing Director’s

Secretariat

Mr. Imran Samad
Managing Director/CEO
Email: md@bankajk.com

Mr. Naveed Ahmad

Private Secretary [PSO

Ph: 05822-921364

Fax: 05822-921344

Ernail: navesedahmad@bankajk.com

Operations Division

Mr. Muhammad Hanif

Divisionaol Head

Ph: D5822-924247

Fo: Q5822-921983

Ernail; dh_operations@bankajk.corm

Mr. Tashfeen Gilani

General Manager

Ph: 05822-921543

Ernail; tashfeen.gilani@bankajk.com)

Communily
Engagement

/
/

Mr. Jalil Muhammad

Manager Operations

Ph: 05822-924247

Fo: 05822-921783

Email: manager_ops@bankajk.com

Mr. Ali Turab
Resident Engineer
Ph: 05822-924247
Fo: 05822-921783

Email: ali. turab@bankajk.com

Credit Management Division

Mr. Maazullah Khan

Divisional Head,

Ph: 05822-9214650

Fone: 05822-921983

Email: dh_credit@bankajk.com

Mr. Shahid Khan

Manager Credit,

Ph: 05822-9214625

Fox: 05822-921983

Email: credit@bankajk.com

www.bankajk.com

Syed Aftab Hussain Gillani
Divisional Head,

Ph: 05822-221483

Fax: 05822-921483

Email: dh_samd@bankajk.com

Mr. Akhtar Hussain

General Manager (Micro & Agri Credit)
Ph: 05822-921062

Fox: 05822-921483

Email: grm_samd.agri@bankajk.com

Raja Ghulam Mustafa

General Manager (Commercial & Recovery)
Ph: 05822-9214644

Fexe: 05822-921483

Email: gm_samd.comm@bankajk.com

Mr. Liogat Awan

General Manager (Commercial & Recovery)
Ph: 05822-924241

Fexe: 05822-221483

Email: grm_samd.coms@bankajk.com

Credit Administration Division

Mr. Muhammad Akram Awan
Divisional Head

Ph: 05822-9215462

Fou: Q5822-921562

Email: dh_cad@bankajk.com

Financial Control Division

Mr. Shahid Shahzad Mir
Divisional Head

Ph: 05822-921372

Fox: 05822-9213463

Email: cfo@bankajk.com

Mr. Liagat Ali Khan

hManager Finance

Ph: 05822-921379

Fox: 05822-721363

Email: finance@bankajk.com

Treasury Management Division

Mr. Shahid Shehzad Mir
Divisional Head

Ph: 05822-921372

Fo: 05822-921343

Email: cio@bankajk.com

Mr. Ahtasham Malik
Divisional Head

Ph: 05822-221118

Fax: 05822-921983

Ernail: dh_it@bankajk.com

Mr. Awais Nisar Abbasi
Manager LT,

Ph: 05822-921564

Fax: 05822-921983

Email: it.awais@bankajk.com

Audit & Inspection Division
Mishat Center, Allama Igbal Road Mirpur,

Mr. Khalid Sardar

Divisional Head

Ph: 05827-921490

Fou: 05827-921408

Email: dh_audit@bankajk.com

Compliance Division

Abdul Hameed Raja
Chief Compliance Officer
Ph: 05822-921624

Fo: Q5822-921983

Email: cco@bankajk.com

Mrs. Raheela Javed
General Manager
Ph:05822-924264
Fox:05822-921983

Email: gm_compliance@bankajk.com

Human Resource Management

Division
Mr. Muhammad Afsar
Divisional Head
Ph: 05822-921635

Fox: 05822-221983
Email: dh_hrd@bankajk.com

Mr. Basharat Hussain

Manager HR

Ph: 05822-924244

Fax: 05822-921983

Email: manager_hrd@bankajk.com

www.bankaih.cam‘
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REGIONS

Regional Office North
Near Shah Anayat Darbar, Upper Adda
Muzaifarabad

Mr. Iamurrad Hussatn
Regional Controller

Ph; 05822-92320%9-10

Feaax: 05822-721063

Email: re_n@bankajk.com

Zonal Office Muzaffarabad

Bank Square Chatter Domail, Muraffarabad

Raja Ghulam Musiala
Tonal Chief
Ph: D5822-447058, 920484

Email; zone.mzd@bankajk.com

Zonal Office Rawalakot
PDA Housing Society, Bank Road Rawalakot
(Ex-Mong Road)

Mr. Mubammad Imilox Shaheen
Zonal Chief

Ph:05824-220522

Feax: 05822-920521

Email: zone ski@bankajk.com

www. bankajk.com

Regional Office South
Mishat Center, Allama lgbal Road, Mirpur

Mr. Shahid Faroog
Regional Controller

Ph: 05827-920132-40%
Fax: 05827-921484

Email; re_s@bankajk.com

Zonal Office Mirpur
Nishal Center, Allama Igtbal Road, Mirpur

Mr . Muhammaod Al Chaudhary
Zonal Chief

Ph: 05827-721449

Fax: 05827-221033
Email:zone.mzd@bankajk.com

Zonal Office Kotli

Opposite GPO, Rawalpind! Road Kotli

Mr. Muhammad Javed igbal
Zonal Chief

Ph: 05826-7202446

Fax: 05826-720244

Email: zone kli@bankajk.com
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JTEN YEARS AT A GLANCE

£

(2007 to 2016)

www.bankajk.com
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ADVANCES RS. IN ~000 EARNING PER SHARE NO. OF BRANCHES |

d . - UU
i 2007 1,338,077

B 2007 5,23 B 2007 1.12 1 2007 9 B 2007 285,220

o0 RASDAR0 B 20s e O 2008 144 8 2008 22 2008 322,051
R 2009 2,308,897 B 2009 163,095 B 2009 1.46 ¥ 2009 35 B 2009 392,402
§ 2010 2,876,846 B 2010 330,283 12010 104 8 5010 A5 N 9010 484 084
2011 3.88,,035 B 2011 952,880 N 2011 1.00 B 2011 50 i 2011 537,934

| 2012 4,599 7564 B 2012 1,101,284 B 2012 1.66 g 2012 52 2012 483 900
$ 2013 5,367,895 B 2013 1,678,147 B 2013 0.72 i 2013 52 B 2013 730,328
2014 6,642,945 B 2014 2,256,907 R 2014 1.22 B 2014 59 i 2014 810.331

l 2015 7,440,877 B 2015 2,833,606 B 2015 0.89 R 2015 b4 B 2015 880,496
I 2016 7,845,625 B 2016 2,609,430 B 2014 0.65 B 2014 &5 i 2014 931.202

ASSETS INVESTMENTS

2007 1,642,820 S PROFIT BEFORE TAX PROFIT AFTER TAX
2008 2,129,870 2008 203,650 2007 50,916 2007 28,498

B 3
2009 2,747,618 2009 286,640 1 2008 59,428 I 2008 36,831
2010 3,416,518 20010 239,164 i 2009 111,289 i 2009 70,551
4,513,683 2011 297,877 i 2010 132,917 i 2010 92,484
9012 5.401.333 2012 225,397 i 2011 77,235 i 201 52,848
2013 6.204.423 2013 203,549 I 2012 140,510 12012 95814

i §

i i

0 ]

B 5

e = 2014 1,172,192 2013 62,600 9013 46,428
S0 B 455430 2015 1,150,465 2014 106,018 2014 80,003
= R 2016 604,748 2015 125,440 2015 70.165
<2 & 029,551 2014 89,608 2016 50,706
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CUSTOMIZED PRODUCTS

* AGRICULTURE FINAMCE & RUNNING FINANCE

& SME FINANCE / CREDITTO # HEALTH CARE SERVICES FINAMNCE
BUSINESSMEN & BUSINESS  AUTO FINANCE

ENTERFRISES @,\
& PROMOTION OF COMMERCIAL -

» MICRO FINANCE / 7
POULTRY FARMS AND HATCHERIES _
* LOAN FOR PROMOTION OF & PROJECT FINANCING FOR A D a 1 4
DESI-MURGHBANI AT HOUSEHOLD CONSTRUCTION OF COMMERCIAL

LEVEL BUILDINGS/SHOPPING MALLS

« FINANCING FOR DAIRY, GOAT&  + PERSONAL LOAN
SHEEP FARMING o CARLOAN

* LOANS FOR ENTERPRISING WOMEN  « HOME APPLIANCES FINANCE
FOR SETIING UP OF BUSINESS AT | o0 o

COTTAGE LEVEL
® TOURISM PROMOTION LOAN
& ADVANCE SALARY LOAN

K.com www,bankajk.cum“
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Dear Shareholders

Your Board of Directors hove the pleasure to
present the 11th Annual Report together with
Audited Statement of Financial Pesition, Profit
and Loss Account and report on business and
operations of the bank for the year ended 31st
December 2014.

Economy

Mafional economy maintained its  impetus
and grew by 4.7 percent during fiscal 2014,
Government  expenditure  on  infrastructure
projects and low interest rates provided a break
to domestic demand while industrial performance
was helped by easing energy supply sifuation.
The enhancement in macroe numbers was also
supported by successiul complefion of the IMF
program, year's low inflation; supported by
subdued commaodily prices, stable exchange rate,
and greater investors’ confidence as observed
through Pakistan's improved ratings and camage
of China Pakistan-Economic-Comidor  [CPEC).
Evident improvement in the securly situalion
augmented these policy measures. The stable
exchange rate, along with the decline in oil prices,
helped drag CPl inflation down o 2.9 percent in
fiscal 2014, These growlh-prone developments
enabled largely sustained policy rate at 5.75
percent, lowest since early 70s. The sharp reduction
in the cost of borowing in recent years and
favorable business environment created demand
for bank credit, In absolute terms, credit o privale
sector expanded by Rs. 441 bilion during the
year - more than double the level of expansion
seen since last fiscal year. Encouragingly, the
expansion was fairly broad-based, as all the major
sectors; textile, power, fertilizer, construction and
transport resorted to bank bomowing. In addition,
consumer financing also gained traction. with
strong demand for aute loans. Looking ahead,
the recent gradual rise in oil prices is a concern
given that the non-cil imports are expected to
remain high while exports are vet to show any
recognizable recovery; the exchange rate will
be tested as the repayment phose approaches
and any currency depreciation will further burden
the balance of payments with higher external
debt service payments. However, higher foreign
invastments including those associated with CPEC
related projects are likely to offset the rise inimport
Lill. The economy is expected to perform better on
back of higher public spending and service sector
growth and we are optimistic on the domestic
demand owing to higher expected public sector
spending: pre-election year, and greater pace of
development projects particularly those related
to CPEC.

The economy of Azad Jammu and Kashmir,
though endowed with enormous human and
natural resources is the least developed part of the
country and depicts a challenging state of affairs
especially with regards to its infrastructure and
access to financial resources. The public sector

is confronfed with an acute resource crunch
whereas the private sectoris not coming forward fo
play its due role of enfreprenaurship development
in the area, mainly due to non-supportive outlook
of banking sector. The fact of the matter is that
the private sector which is the engine of growth
and socio economic development cannot flourish
efficiently without the support of banking sector.

The banking sector in AJE, though stable and
self-sufficient in financial resources (deposits and
hame remiftances) yet has been found as hesitant
and indifferent in channelizing the private sector
savings for generating the economic activifies
in the area. The usual stance of commercial
banks operating in the region that there are no
investment opportunities is an oversimpliication of
the: issues.

In reality the State hos vast  opportunities for
productive investment in various sectors of the
economy including minerals, waler resources,
tourism,  livestock, poullry,  vegelables,  fruit
orchards, forests, cottage industry and traditional
Kashmin  handicrafts  ete,.  Unfortunately,  the
banking sector is nol giving attention fo AJK
territory in their business plans and financing
strategies. Resultantly, the advances to deposils
ratic (ADR) of the banks operaling in this region
conlinues to remain around 4% as against overall
ratic of 40%. As against this the BAJE due toils
policy of nalional economic consideration posted
an ADR (advances lo depaosils ralio) of 38% during
the year setting an example for other banks.

l
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Banking Sector

Depaosits of banks, rose to Rs1 1.2 hilion in December
2014, the highest level in three years, which
indicated well for the financial sector Bank
deposits came in at Rs.2.3 tilion in December
2015, Deposits are increasing gradually after
experiencing withdrawal following the increase
in withholding tax on cash tfransactions last year.
Deposits fell in the last couple of vears due to
monetary easing and conseguent fall in minimum
savings rate and impaosition of withholding tax on
banking transactions. A 20% year-on-year growth
in depaosits is significantly higher than historical
average growth of 12% during the last three years.
Analysts are unanimous that banks must increase
their efforts for deposit mobilization, which are the
majorsource of their funding. The advances to the
privatesectorrose 17/ %toRs, S.6thllioninDecember
last yvear from Rs. 4.8 trlion in the comesponding
month of the previous year. Investments were up
8% to RBs. 7.2 frlion. Improvement in bank loans
showed pick up in credit demand from businesses
amid broad consensus about the country’s cheery
economic prospects. The increased pace of work
on infrastructure and CPEC-related projects would
boost the appetite for bank lending in 2017.The
SBP key policy rate stands at 5.75 %, which is at
a 42-year low. Soft interest rate fuelled surge in
advances from banks during the last yvear. Banks
are also focusing on high-yielding consumer
(product) growth to support their margins and
profitability. As per SBP, the private sector credit is
expected to take a boost from improving demand
condifions as implied by growth in manufacturing
sector, better energy supplies, especialy to the
manufacturing sector, growing momentum  of
CPEC-related activities, and, the lagged impact
of easy monetary policy.

The spread between lending and deposit
rate is shrinking in the wake of easy monefary
condifions. This coupled with faling vield on
treasury investments were already taking a toll on
the sector's profifability, however, it 15 expected
that the decelerating profitakility may further
push banks towards their core - and high yielding
business of lending. The banking sector remains
sound and resilient on an overall basis. However,
the expected growth in the private sector credit
will increase the quantum of risk weighted assets.
At the same fime, the slowdown in profitability
may hamper the banks' akility to plough back
profits and support capital base. This might pul
downward pressure on the capital adequacy
ratfic.

Bank's Perf Revi

At the outset | would like to suggest the members
to review performance in the backdrop of the
fact that the bank started its operations 11 years
ago and the banking activities remained hovering

BAUK |

around collection of savings and other deposit
accounts and their placement with other banks
over a period of five years. Along the course of
bank’s operafional life, it was also necessary fo
pave the way for the bank to play its role in the
socio economic development of state and well
being of people.

This dimension was unforfunaiely missing in the
bank’s corporate sirategy. Inthe previous strategy.
the essential investment in most critical areas like
human resource, information technology and
other operafional infrasiructure was according fo
indusiry benchrmarks and long term sustainability
was  convenlionally postponed as a regular
praclice. This short term approach compromised/
defeated the long term sustainability of the Bank
with the resull a sizeable number of branches
opened humiedly withoul adequale supporl
of IT and ather infrastructure and could notl be
converled inlo profitable units.

BAJK results for 2014 reflect another year of
satisfactory performance in terms of operating
profit, whereas. the banking industry continued
lo be challenged by low interest margins. Bank's
operaling profit grew by 24 milion or 14 percent
during full year 2014 to reach at Rs. 201 million
while the profit before tax and after tax decreased
by 35 milion and 1% milion respectively, due to
increase in provisioning of Rs. 32 milion against
Norn-Performing loans and Rs. 27 million against
other Provisions/write Off . The MNon-Performing
Loans [NPL) in 2016 were increased by Rs.157
million (65%) and reached at Rs.397 million from
Rs.240 million in 2015,

Rs in Million
Growth
Parliculars
Amount Teage

Incorme 85% 834 25 3

Depaosit Cost 333 7s [43) (1)
Admin Expeanses 325 281 44 14
Operating Profit 201 177 24 14
Provisioning 111 52 59 111
Profit Before Tax g0 125 [35) (28)
Taxation 39 55 [14] (2%)
Profit After Tox 51 70 (19) (27)
Earnings per Share 0.45 0.89 [0.24) [27)

The Total Income increased by 25 milion or 3%
mainly confriibuted by markup income. Met
markup income increased by 57 milion or 14%
despite low inlerest rate environment of 2015
confinued throughout 2014, The aggregale cosl
of funds declined by 11% in line with the frend of
interest rates. Administrative and other operating
expenses increased to Rs. 325 million from Rs. 281
million, a rise of 14 %.

The deposit base of the Bank grew lo Rs. 7.844
bilion on December 31, 2014 from Rs. 7.441 bilion
at the close of previous year, an increase of 5%.
Gross Advances decreased by Rs. 145 million or
5% to close at Rs. 2.8379 billion at the end of 2014.
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Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) and Earning Per
share

The Met Worth of the Bark increcsed to REs.949
rrillicn, in the year 2014, from Rs.889 million of 2015.

The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) under BASEL-NI
stood at 21.16%, as on 31st December 2016, which
is much above the norm of 10% stipulated by the
State bank of Pakistan, The Tier-l component of
CAR stood at 19.57%, as on 31st December, 2016
which is much above the norm of 6% stipulated
by the State Bank of Pakistan. The advantage has
stemmed mainly due to healthy assets and high
rated Investment. The Earnings Per Share for the
year 2014 stood al Rs.0.465 decreased by Rs.0.24
as compare lo Rs.0.87 last year. During the year
under review, various improvements were made o
the CAR reporling systems to facilitate the Basel-ll
reporting framework requirement

Customer Services and Operalions

The Bank remained commiltted lo offer banking
services, mainfain improved oullock and improve
internal environment of branches while ensuring
effective implementation of systems and internal
confrols. Systems and procedures were upgraded
to faciitate and guide the field funclionaries to
achieve operalional efficiency and effecliveness.

Future Outlook

The BAJK i commilted to its vision lo emerge
as a premier financial instituion for foslering
socio economic development for the people
of AlK. Going forward, the pricrities of BAJK will
be positioning in the market by acquiring the
scheduled status. In this pursuit, concerted efforts
will be made for making a corvincing business
case for the stake holders to muster their support in
all directions including legal and financial.

Going forward the management will adeopt a
strategy of consclidation of existing operations,
technology up-gradation, improving the quality
of human resource for long term sustainability
and competitiveneass of the institution. Secondly,
on the business side an aggressive strategy will
be adopted to enhance the outreach of the
bank to all segments of customers and emerge
as a catalyst of change in the socio economic
conditions by generating economic activities with
focus on the low income groups of society through
viable lending policies.

The bank's focus during 2017 will be: among other
things on the following:

|. Efforts will be made in all directions including
persuading the AJE Council, AJK Commercial
Departments, potential prvate sector investors
both from within and outside the country for equity
parficipation for meeting the minimum capital
requirement [MCR) to the maximum possible
extent.

2. All lending activities will be driven by the only
consideration of creating quality and earningassets
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far ensuring the sustainability of the operations and
meeating the minimum requirements relafting to risk
management, corporate governance, customer
due diligence (CDD) and anfi-money laundering
[AML) as laid down in SBP Prudential Regulations.

3. It will be ensured that all bank operatfions are
in compliance of SBP Prudential Regulations and
generdlly accepted banking norms and principles.

4, Professionals and competent management is the
key requirement to remain competitive and ensure
sustainakbility, hence, comporate professionals with
broader outlook and impeccable record will be
infegrated in the management team.

5. For strengthening the earning capacity of the
bank on strong fooling. existing products will be
reviewed and new producls added malching
the regional requirements. In assel products cash
flow capacilty along with other requisites of sound
lending will be made inbuilt features for ensuring
the fulure earmings as well as performing status of
cssels.

&, Systemns and conbrols play vilal role in sk
management, fransparency and effectiveness
of the operalions besides cost effeclivenass and
customer service, In this regard strong technology
support will be arranged lo remain compelitive in
the market. Al funclional areas of the bank will be
equipped with MIS for better management

7. For supporting the socio-economic development
of the state, private sector initiatives in all potential
sectors particulardy hydropower, forestry, toursm,
traditional  handicrafts, health and education,
having commercial viability will be fully supported.

8.To faciitate the customers in pan Pakistan
imward remittances, the bank has agency
arrangements in place with other banks. However,
efforts are underway to have more banks s
our corespondents. The Bank has supportive
arangements and extensive network of ifs
branches to faciitate payment of inward home
remittances at fast track level with convenience
and speed. Agency armangemeants with leading
exchange companies such as Money Gram have
been strengthened and further streamlined. These
arrangements will faciitate the payment of forgign
imward remittonces to account holders and walk
in customers.

2. Improved technology wil continue to remain
corner stone of pricrities for achieving operational
efficiency, organizational effectiveness, better
management, focus on growth and customer
service,

10. Strengthen compliance and risk management
system for enhancing the depth of the crganization

Statements under Section 52(4) Of Bank's By-laws
2007

The Board of Directors is fully cognizant of its
responsibility under the Bank's By-laws 2007, The
following statements are a demonsiration of its
commitment fowards confinuous organizational
improvement.

* The financial statements prepared by the
management of the Bank, present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity.

* Proper books of accounts have been maintained
by the Bank.

= Appropriale accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of these
financial stalements and accounting estimales are
based on reasonable and prudent

judgment.

* International Accounting  Standards as
applicable in Pakistan have been folowed and
any departure there form has been adequately
disclosed.

* The system of infernal controls is sound in design
and has been effeclively implemenled and
maonifored.

Leepa Vdlley
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BANK OF AZAD JAMMU AND KASHMIR

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Bank of Azad Jammu and Kashmir (the Bank),
which comprise statement of financial position as at December 31, 20186, profit and loss account
for the year then ended, statement of other comprehensive income for the year then ended,
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Bank present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Bank as at December 31, 2016 and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of The Bank of Azad
Jammu and Kashmir Act, 2005 (the Act) and its Bye-Laws 2007 (the Bye-Laws).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statements in Pakistan and we have
fulfilled our other responsibilities in accordance with the requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and
the requirements of the Act and the Bye-Laws, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intend
to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank'’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

A. F. FERGUSON & C0,, Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the Prw(C network
PIA Building, 3rd Floor, 49 Blue Area, Fazl-ul-Hag Road, P.0O. Box 3021, Islamabad-44000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (51) 2273457-00/2604034-37; Fox: +02 (51) 2277924, 2200473; < wunp.pwe.com/pk>

KARACHI . LAHORE . ISLAMABAD
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

fp—t”

Chartered Accountants
Islamabad: June 7, 2017

Engagement Partner: S. Haider Abbas
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THE BANK OF AZAD JAMMU AND KASHMIR THE BANK OF AZAD JAMMU AND KASHMIR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2016 Decamber 31, FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
Note 2016 2015 Note 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000 Rupees in ‘000
ASSETS Mark-up / return / interest earned 21 808,798 794,704
Mark-up / return / interest expensed 22 333,382 375948
Cash and balances with treasury banks 6 1,299,452 873,616 Net mark-up / interest income 475416 418,756
Balonces with other banks 7 3,843,415 3,144,100 Provision against non-performing loans and advances - net 7.4 72711 46,558
Lending to financial institutions _ _ Pravision for diminution in the value of investments - net - -
Investments 8 604,748 1,150,465 Bad debts written off directly - 440
Advances 9 2,609,430 2,833,608 \at kuo /int . " - ;';é‘; 3:}1"?;:
Dper[]ﬁng fixed assets 10 ] ]5;_‘-.38 ]’25'283 1 IMCark-up finleresl incCome Qiler pProvisomns hy .
Defered tax assets 11 13.386 1.881 Non k-up / inferest income
Other assets 12 450,252 326,479
8,936,321 8,455,430 Fee, commission and brokerage income 17,315 22,602
LIABILITIES Dividend income 10,691 2.235
Income from dealing in foreign cumencies - -
Bills payakble 13 8,714 7634 Gain on sale of securities - net 23 17.113 2.045
Bomowings - - Unrealized gain / (loss) on revaluation of investments
Deposits and other accounts 14 7,845,625 7,440,877 classified as held for frading - net = =
sub-ordinated loans ~ ~ Other income 24 5619 5,060
Liakilifies against assels subject to inance lease fotal nen-markup / interest income 50,738 38,962
Defered Government grant - - Non mark irkarast 445,449 410,70
Other licbilities 15 132,659 117,642 “Up / Inferest expenses
7,987,000 7,966,153 Administrative expenses 25 324,969 280,424
NET ASSETS 247,321 889.277 Other provisions / write offs 31,8464 4,836
Other charges - -
REPRESENTED BY Total non-markup / interest expenses 356,835 285,260
89,608 125,440
Share capital 14 785,977 785,977 Extracrdinary [/ unusual items - -
Reserves - - Profit before taxation 89,608 125,440
Unappropriated profit 145,225 94,519 = current (49.892) (48,497)
931,202 880,494 ~ prior year (5.542) (12.220)
sumplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 17 18,119 8,781 - deferred 16,532 3,443
949,321 889,277 26 (38.902) (55.275)
Profit after taxation 50,704 70,165
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 18 Unoppro-;lmc:’red profit brculngt forward 94,519 155,350
Profit available for appropriafion 145,225 225515
Basic earnings per share - Rupees 27 0.65 0.8%

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
The annexed noles 1 1o 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

hairman Management Director | Director Chairmean Management Director Director | _Director
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THE BANK OF AZAD JAMMU AND KASHMIR
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

THE BANK OF AZAD JAMMU AND KASHMIR
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

BAUK |

2016 2015 Note 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000 Rupees in ‘000
Profit after taxation 50,704 70,185 Cash flow from operating activities
Other comprehensive income Profit t{»:-:-‘fofe thqﬁon 89,608 125,440
Less: dividend income 10,691 2,235
. BT 123.205
Components of comprehensive income not reflected in equity Adjustments:
Depreciation 22974 17,705
Surplus [ [deficil) on revaluation of available for sale securilies 14,365 (3.048) Provision against non-performing loans and advances 79.711 44,558
Related defered tax credit / (expense) (5.027) 1,067 Other provisions 31.8B64 4815
Defered lax expernse for the prior period (4.140) Gain {:_’n S_GID of fixed assets (1.840) (97)
5 338 6.121) Armorfization of defered government grant - (7]
! : 132,713 88,972
Comprehensive income fransferred to equity - net of tax &0,044 &4,044 211,630 192,177
i o i i . i Decrease [ (increase) in operaling assels
Surplus / [deficit) arsing on revaluation of “available for sale securilies - net of lax™ has been shown in Advances 144.465 (623,257
the Statement of Comprehensive Income in order o comply with the revised “Prudential Regulations for Oth ' 120 'I 17 23;.43?
Corporate f Commercial Banking” issued by the Stale Bank of Pakistan. erassels (120.117) -
. . 24,348 (594.770)
The annexed notes 1 1o 39 form an infegral part of these inancial staterments. Increase in operating liabilities
Bills payable 1,082 2,082
Depaosits and olher accounis A04,7 48 797,928
Other liabilities 11,855 (10,884)
417,685 789,126
Cash generated from operations 453,663 384,533
4 Income tax paid (87.794) (27.706)
—_— . /_if“ Met cash generated from operating activities 545,849 358,827
Chairman Management Director Director Director Cash flow from investing activities
Net investment in available for sale securities 15,000 25,000
Het investment in held to maturty securities 545,082 (6,321)
Dividend income 10,6921 2,235
Investments in operating fixed assets (13.539) (31.634)
Sale proceeds of operating fixed assets disposed off 2.048 97
Met cash flow from investing activities 559,282 (10,623)
Cash flow from financing activities - -
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,125,151 348,204
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 28 4017714 3,669,512
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 5,142,847 4017714

The annexed noles 1 lo 37 form an integral part of these financial statemenis.

/S
—_ ) J /.
(_Dire

Management Director clor
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THE BANK OF AZAD JAMMU AND KASHMIR
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

1.

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Share capital  Unappropriated Total
P D;“fli-l: The Bank of Azad Jammu and Kashmir (the Bank) was established under The Bank of Azad
Jammu and Kashmir Act, 2005 (the Act) and is principally engaged in commercial banking and
Rupees in ‘000 related services as a non-scheduled bank in Azad Jammu and Kashmir State. The registered
office of the Bank is situated at Bank Square, Chatter, Muzaffarabad, Azad Jammu and Kashmir.,
Balance as at January 1, 2015 454,981 155,350 210,331 The Government of Azad Jammu and Kashmir holds directly and indirectly Bank's enfire share
Total comprehensive income for the year ended capital at the year end.
December 31, 2015 The Bank has 65 branches (2015: 64 branches) in Azad Jammu and Kashmi.
Met profit for the year ended December 31,2015 - 70,185 70,185
Other comprehensive income relalted to equity 2 BASS OF FRESCHIRTION
- 0,163 f0.165 These financial statements have been presented in accordance with the requirements of format
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan's BSD Circular No 4 dated February 17, 2004, the Acl
Issue of bonus shares @ 20% of paid up capital 130,996 [130,994) - and its Bye-Laws 2007 (the Bye-Laws).
Balance as at January 1, 2014 785,977 24,519 880,494 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the cumency of the primary
economic environment in which the Bank operates. The financial statements are presented in
Total comprehensive incomne for the ended Pak Rupee, which is the Bank's functional and presentation cumency. Figures have beenrounded
pr year off to the nearest thousand of upees unless otherwise stated.
December 31, 2014
Met profit for the year ended December 31, 2014 - ‘ 50,708 ‘ 50,706 3. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
Other comprehensive income related to equity These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
- 50,706 50,706 Act, its Bye-Laws and approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, for Banking
Balance as ot December 31 2014 785977 145995 931 207 Companies. Bye-Laws require that the statement of financial position and profit and loss account
) : - - of the Bank shall be drawn up in conformity with the rules and regulations of the State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) and Section 34 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1942,
International Accounting Standard 3%, “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”,
International Accounting Standard 40, “Investment Property” and Intermnational Financial
The annexed notes 1 to 3% form an in[egcﬂ part of these financial statements. Reporﬁr'lg Standard 7, “Fnancial Instruments: Disclosure” are not ClppliC:ClblE to baning
companies in Pakistan. Accordingly. the requirements of these Standards have not been
considered in the preparation of these financial statements. Accordingly, investments have
been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the SBP through
wvarious circulars,
3 Adopfion of new / revised standards, interpretations and amendments fo approved accounting
standards
o . /f}/ﬂ a) The following amendments to published accounting standards were effective during the year
i /D/{ and have been adopted by the Bank:
hairman Management Director | Director Effective date (annual periods
beginning on or after)
a) The following amendments and interpretations to published accounting standards were effective

during the year and have been adopted by the Bank:
IFRS 5 Non- Curent Assets Held for Sale January 1, 2014

and Discounted Operations (Amendments)

IFRS 11 Joint Arangements [Amendments) January 1, 2014
1AS Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments January 1, 2014
|AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment [Amendments) January 1, 2014
1AS 19 Employee Benefits (Amendments) January 1, 2014
|AS 247 Separate financial statements [Amendments) January 1, 2014
|AS 38 Intangible Assets (Amendments) January 1, 20146
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Following standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASE),
which are yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for
the purpose of their applicability in Pakistan:

Effective date (annual period

beginning on or after)

IFRS 1 First-Time Adoption of International Financial 5.

Reporting Standards July 1, 2009
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral accounts January 1, 2014
Following standards and amendments to published accounting standards will be effective in 5.1
future periods and have not been eary adopted by the Bank.

Effective date (annual period
beginning on or after)
52

IFRS 1 First time Adoption of International Financial January 1, 2018

Reporting Standards [Amendmenls)
IFRS 2 Share Based payments (Amendments) January 1, 2018
IFRS 4 Insurance Confracls January 1, 2018
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments [Amendments) January 1, 2018
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other entilies (Amendments) January 1, 2017
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers January 1, 2018
IFRS 14 Leases January 1, 2019
A5 12 Income taxes (amendments) January 1, 2017
A5 39 Financial Instruments : Recognition and January 1, 2018

Measurement [Amendments)
|45 40 Investment Property (Amendments) July 1, 2018

The management anticipates that adoption of above stondards and amendments in future
periods will have no materialimpact on the Bank's financial statements other than in presentation/
disclosure.,

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified
for certain investments which are caried at fair values.

Use of critical accounling estimates and judgments

The preparafion financial statements in conformity with opproved accounting standards

as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain accounting estimates. It alse requires 53
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies.

The Bank uses estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting

estimate will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates and judgments

are continually evaluated and are based on historical experence and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The

areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and

estimates are significant to the financial staterments are as follow:

i) classification of investrments (note 5.2)

i) provision against investments (note 5.2). advances (note 5.3), operating fixed assets
(note 5.4) and other assets (note 5.5)

www.bankajk.com
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] valuation and impairment of available for sale securities (note 5.2)
iv) useful life of property and equipment (note 5.4)
v) taxation (note 5.7)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with
other banks, call lendings and placements with financial institutions having maturities of three
manths or less,

Investments
Investments are classified as follows:
Held for trading

These represent securities acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short-term
market / interest rate movements. These are marked to market and surplus / deficit arising on
revaluation of 'held for trading' investments is taken to profit and loss account in accordance
with the requirements of the S8P"s BSD Circular No. 10 dated July 13, 2004,

Available for sale

These represent securities which do not fall under ‘held for trading” or ‘held to maturity’
categories. In accordance with the requirements of the SBP's BSD Circular No. 20 dated August
04, 2000 and BPRD circular 06 dated June 246, 2014, available for sale securities for which ready
quotations are available on Reuters Page [PKRY) or Stock Exchanges are valued at market value
and the resulting surplus f deficit is taken through “Statement of Comprehensive Income” and is
shown below the shareholders’ equity in the statement of financial position. Where the decline in
prices of available for sale equity securities is significant and prolonged, it is considered impaired
and included in profit and loss account. Impairment loss on available for sale debt securities is
determined in accordance with the requirements of Prudential Regulations issued by SBP.

Unquoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value, Break-up value
of equity securities is calculated with reference to the net assels of the investee as per the latest
audited financial statements. Investments in other unguoted securities are valued at cost less
impairment losses, if any.

Held te mafurity

These represent securities acgquired with the intention and akility to hold them upto maturity.
These are camied at amortized cost in accordance with the requirements of SBP's BSD Circular
Mo, 14 dated September 24, 2004,

All purchases and sales of investment that require delivery within the time frame established by
regulafions or market convention are recognized at the trade date, which is the date the Bank
commits to purchase or sell the investments.

Advances

Advances are stated net of provisions for non-performing advances. The Bank reviews its loan
portfolio and debt securities classified as investments to assess the amount of non-performing
loans and advances and debt securifies and provision required there-against, While assessing
this requirernent various factors including the delinguency in the account, financial position of
the bomower, the forced sale value of securities and requirements of the Prudential Regulations
are considered. For portfolio impairment provision on consurmer advances, the Bank follows the
general provision requirement set out in Prudential Regulafions.

The provisions against non-performing advances are charged to the profit and loss account.
Advances are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
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5.5

5.6

5.7

Capital work-in-progress, operating fixed assets and depreciation
Capital work-in-progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost.

Tangible assels

Fixed assets are stated at cost less impairment losses and accumulated depreciation except for
freehold [ leasehold land which is not depreciated.

Infangible assefs

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation [ amortization

Depreciation / amortization is computed on monthly basis over the estimated useful live of the
related assets at the rates set out in note 10.2 on monthly basis. The cost of assets is depreciated
J amortized on a straight line basis. Depreciation f amortization is charged for the full month of
purchase [ acquisition [ availability for use of an asset while no depreciation / ameortization is
charged in the month of disposal of an asset, Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to
profit and loss account as and whenincured, Major renewals and improvements are capitalized.
Gains and losses on disposal of operating fixed assets are taken to the profit and loss account.

In making estimates of the depreciation / amorlizalion. the management uses uselul ife and
residual value which reflects the pattern in which economic benefils are expected fo be
consumed by the Bark. The useful life and the residual value are reviewed at each financial
year end and any change in these estimates in future years might effect the carrying amounts
of the respective itern of operaling fixed assels with the coresponding eflect on depreciation /
amaortization charge.

Impairment

The carrying amount of the Bank's assets are reviewed at the reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment, If such indications exist, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated in order to determineg the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Impairment
loss is recognized as expense in the profit and loss account, An impairment 1oss is reversed only
to the extent that the asset’s camying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization. if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

Deposits

Deposits are initially recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up accrued on depaosits
is recognized separately as part of other liakilities and is charged to the profit and loss account
on a time proportion basis,

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income or below equity.

Current

Provision for curent tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year using
tax rates applicable at the date of statement of financial position and any adjustment to tax
payable for previous years.

Deferred

Defered tax is provided for by using the balance sheet liakility method, providing for temporary
differences between the camying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the amount used for taxation purposes. The amount of defered tax provided is based on
the expected manner of realization or setlement of the camying amount of assets and liakilities

www.bankajk.com
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using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the date of statement of financial position. A
defered tax asset is recognized only to the extent thatitis probable that the future taxable profit
will be available and credits can be utilized. Defered tax assets are reduced to the extent it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Defered tax, on revaluation of
investments, if any, is recognized as an adjustment to surplus [ (deficit) arising on such revaluation.

Staff refirement benefits
Gratuity scheme

The Bank operates funded defined contributory gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees.
Confributions are made by the Bank on monthly basis at the rate of one month last drawn
basic pay for each completed year of service, However, no contribution will be made for those
employees who are on deputation in the Bank or on extracrdinary leave. Gratuity for service
rendered during any part of the year shall be payable proporfionately.

Provident fund

The Bank operates funded defined conhlibutory provident fund scheme for all its permanent
employees. Equal monthly contributions are made by the Bank and the employees at the rate
of 8.33% of basic pay.

Leave encashment

The Bank provides compensated absences lo all its employees. Provision for compensated
absence i recognized based on the enfitlerment for leave encahsment as per policy of the Bank.

Revenue recognition

Mark-up [interest on advances and return on invesimenls is recognized on accrual basis except
on classified advances and investments which is recognized on receipl basis. Mark-up [/ interest
on rescheduled [ reshruciured advances and investments is recognized as permitted by the
regulafions of the 5BP, except where in the opinion of the management it would not be prudent
o do so.

Fee, commission, efc. are recognized at the time of performance of service.
Dividend income is recognized when the Bank's right to receive the dividend is established.

Purchase and sale of investments are recorded on the dates of confracts. Gains [ losses on sale
of investments are also recorded on those dates and are included in income cumenthy.

Government grant

Government grant related fo assets are reflected in the Statement of Financial Position as
defered government grant which is recognized as income over the useful life of the depreciable
assets equivalent to related depreciation charge.

Revenue grants are recognized as income necessary to match these grants with the related
expenses incumred,

Foreign currency fransactions

Assets and liabilities in foreign curencies are franslated inte Pak Rupees at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of Statement of Financial Position.

Provisions

Provisions other than provision on advances (stated in note 5.3) are recognized when the
Bank has a present legal and constructive cbligation arising as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Off setting

Financial assets and financial liakilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial
statements when there is a legal enforceable right to set off and the Bank intends either to setile
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on a net basis, or to redlize the assets and settle the liabilities, simultaneously.
Appropriations subsequent to the date of statement of financial position

Appropriations subsequent to year end are recognised durng the yeor in which those
appropriations are made.

Segment reporting

A segment B a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged in providing products
or services (business segment) or in providing product or services within a particular economic
environment ([geographical segment), which is subject to rsks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments. The Bank's primary format of reporting is based on business segments.

Business segment
Corporate financing

Corporale financing includes corporate and investment banking aclivities such as mergers
and acquisition, underwriting, privatization, research, debt [government, high yield). equily,
syndicalions, initial public offers and secondary privale placements.

Trading and sales

Trading and sales includes the Bank's fixed income, equily, foreign exchanges, commodities,
credil, funding. own posilion securities, lending and repos, brokerage debl and prime brokerage.

Retail banking

Retai banking segment provides retail lending and depaosils, banking services, trust and estates,
investment advice, merchant / commercial / corporate cards and private labels and retfail.

Commercial banking

Commercial banking segment provides services related to project finance, real estale, export
finance, trade finance, factoring, leasing, lending. guarantees and bills of exchange to corporate
custormers.

Payment and setflement

Payment and settlement includes income from payments and collections, funds transfer, clearing
and settlement,

Agency service

Agency service include escrow, depository receipts, securifies lending (customers) corporate
actions and issuing and paying agents.

Retail brokerage

All brokerage services provided by the Bank are included in this line of business.
Geographical segments

The Bank operates in Azad Jammu and Kashrnir,

Earning per share

The Bank presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares, EPS s calculated by
dividing fthe profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted
average number of ardinary shares outstanding during the year

&,
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2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
In hand:
Local curency 70,298 73,8379
With National Bank of Pakistan in:
Local cumency saving accounts - note 4.1 79,154 99777
Local cumency deposit accounts - note 6.2 1,150,000 700,000
1,299,452 873.614

These include saving deposits camying markup at rates ranging between 4.00% to 5.46 % [2015:
4% to 4.15%) per annum.

This represents term depaosits camying markup af rates ranging between 4.00% to 5.90% [(2015:
4.00% to 4.25%) per annum with maturities upto three months.

2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan (Azad Jammu and Kashmir)
Cin curent accounts 50,061 50,025
Cn deposit accounts - note 7.1 & 7.2 3,793,354 3,094,075
3.843.415 3,144,100

These include saving deposits camying markup af rates ranging befween 4.00% to 5.46 % (2015:
4% to 6.15%) per anum.

These also include term deposits camying markup al rates ranging belween 5.75% o 192.84%
(2015: 4.00% to 19.84%) per annum. Term deposits include an amount of Bs 300 million (2015: Rs
300 million) placed with a bank maturing in 2024, Remaining term deposits have maturities upto
twelve months.
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?.4.1 The net F3Y benefit already availed has been decreased by Rs 44,202 million, which has resulted : oo o 5 oo o o
in increased charge for specific provision for the yvear by the same amount. Had the FSY benefit E F SERERR=EER i SERERR=2ER
not decreased, before and after tax profit for the year would have been higher by Bs 44.202 E E E E_
million (2015: lower by Rs 71.334 million) and Bs 14.25]1 million (2015 lower by Bs 31.591 million) E = E -
respactively. Further, at December 31, 2014, cumulative net of tax benefit availed for Forced
Saled Value (FSV) was Rs 20.201 million {2015 Rs 36.452 million) under BSD circular No. 1 of 2011 - =~ g N - BN &
dated October 21, 2011, Reserves and un-appropriated profit to that extent are not available for :E ) g g =l g o L % ™ E n g = ¥ & g
distribution by way of cash or stock dividend. '§ - gﬁ go o~ ~—ag = '§ e Eﬁ goowm-—g ]
. : . e . R - = =
9.5 General provision on consumer finance and micro finance loans is maintained in accordance zEA™ SA™
with the requirements of Prudential Regulations issued by State Bank of Pakistan.
i ' - = 2ea T = . - 1
9.5 This represents agriculture loans charged off as per time based criteria prescribed by the State EEE f"?’ 35, r*‘a, § = = o ‘;'% E"E 5 o O 3:, & g & 3 §
Bank of Pakistan in Annexure |l of regulation B - 11 or Prudential Regulations for Agricultural @ E ‘ Lex2g Py T - oo = E
Financing. 206 2015 E m E b
Hupee;in‘ﬂun :.E il i il i ''& ‘e : - 1 f i i [ = = U =
9.7 Particulars of write-offs: = - 2 = 2 = |
. .. Z o0& W W L1 Zles ©
Against provisions o mE£ S| m£
Directly charged to profit and loss account - 9.5.1 - 440 E < 3 E < 3
o o
A&0 W o e @ — O = | -0 L = = o9 O W30 uwa
€5 358388 3K ARE ISI8§F 88
) ) ) ) ) Eﬂi — ool oo oy Eg.i s B s B ~
a7 This represented advance to stall for car financing written off in prior year. g a = i E a 2 =
£ o £ o
2016 2015 e| |T% & n e
i g e g e
rupsesin 092 sl szesgaslyl f| L f semgzscgl
7.8 Partficulars of loans and advances to executives, directors, "E EEE o @ N @ r:- o :5- E ?EE ol E- 7 :- :; < %-
associated companies etc. © 2N T 2N
Debls due by directors, execulives or officers of the Bank or | 8
any of them either severally or jointhy with any other persons E w@ g "é g 5 § % E & g E A g % g § "ﬁ % E" ' E:'S §
=2c T W R R N - L e A 2
g58 S*82833 |8 SES |9 x®% |8
Balonce at the beginning of the yvear 17,364 18,885 8 n E =
Loans granted during the year 2,337 1.721
Repayments made during the year {3.73%) {3.240) 2 2 2 % = g
. § 4 2 < . ‘g 4 == - ]
Balance at the end of the year 15,964 17,366 5% = < 5% - =
-~ -
Debts due by subsidiary companies, controlled firms, E‘ E
= o o o [ s Y 8 T O
managed modarabas and other related parties = E g ] -3 ﬁ § s g Y E }:j ’-Fi % § - IR
= ow = = o - = o7 g o
- - o -
Balance at the beginning of the year 304,744 364,668 ® E
Loans granted during the year - - ) SR8k One . _— % == ol3
Repayments made during the year [54,244) [59.924) » Ew § 828282 = &S . 'E.:‘m § S ﬁ ~ g &7 x|
Balance at the end of the year 250,500 304,744 w58 = TRA% g 238 STITUEITY 3
£ £
2 =
10. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS ,,g e o o®
= c
Capital work-in-progress - note 10.1 954 1,480 g 5 g & g
Property and equipment - note 10.2 114,684 123,803 % % D 'éi % D §!
= — = P
Infangible asset - note 10.3 - - ] 0832 £ 18 3¢ £
115,638 125,283 = 2sEas, 2 2= Eg g
2 86238 O 36238 ©
S0 035§ L Egl o550
FESedf 3w " EBT e BRg2g @
10.1 Capital work in progress 238 8¢ g c € % 22 38¢ E £ €70 g“
& 82860220 Sa880c02280

This represents advance to suppliers in respect of purchase of office equipment, computers and furniture,

10.2
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10.2.1  Property and eguipment includes cost of Rs.5.485 thousand (2015 Bs.5,485 thousand) and 12.1 This includes an amount of Rs.1,872 thousand [2015: Rs. 3,069 thousand) on account of interest
accumulated depreciation amounting to R5.5,485 thousand (201 5: Bs.5,485 thousand) in respect receivable from related party.
of assets donated by the Government of Azad Jammu and Kashmir.
12.2 This balance has been amived at after adjusting interest in suspense of Rs. 44,346 thousand (2015:

10.3 Intangible asset Rs. 30,184 thousand).
The Bank is in the process of implementation of Core Banking Information System [Helios) which is 2016 2015
currently installed on certain branches of the Bank. This software is financed by Kashmir Council Rupees in 000
(Government of AJK). 123 Provision against other assefs
10.4  Detail of disposals of operating fixed assets Cpening balance 4,815 4815
Parficulars of assefs ~ Original ~ Accumulated  Book Sale  Modeof Particulars Charge for the year i i
cost depreciation value proceeds disposal  of buyer Closing balance 4,815 4815
Rupees in ‘000 13. BILLS PAYABLE
Netices In Pakist Arad ol Kashirmi 87164 7,634
) n Pakistan (Azad Jammu and Kashirmir ’ :
loyota Prado 2,688 2,688 - 1,710 Auction  Usman Zahid Awan [ )
Toyola Corolla 1,300 1,300 130 As per policy  Moanidah Ehan, Employes 2016 2015
Honda Civic 2.082 1.874 208 208 Asperpolicy  FopakueRebman, B MD Rupees in "000
2014 6,070 3,862 208 2,048 14. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
2015 P67 Fa7 - ?7 Customers
2016 2015 Fixed deposits 2,633,125 2,469,382
Rupees in ‘000 Savings deposits 3,521,083 3,506,604
11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS Current accounts - non remuneralive 1,690,694 1,464,776
Defemed tax arising due to: Others 723 113
7,845,425 7440877
Tax depreciation {2.768) (1.419) 14.1 Parficulars of deposits
Provision against non-performing advances classified in (7.8748) (3.504) Inlocal curency 7 845,675 7.440.877
sub-standard category In foreign curency - -
Provision for customer claims {8.863) - 7.845.625 7.440.877
Other provisions (3,435) (1.485)
(23,142) (6.410) 14.2 Thisincludes depaosits from related parties amounting to Rs. 3,645,349 thousand (2015: Rs. 3,279,845
Surplus on revaluation of available for sale securities 9756 4,729 thousand).
{13.384) {1.881) 15. OTHER LIABILITIES
1.1 Movement of deferred tax (asse) / liability Mark-up / retum / interest payable in local curency - note 15.1 53,649 61,924
Opening defered tax iability {1.881) 488 Accrued expenses 5,599 5310
Defered credifs recogrised in profit and loss arsing due to: Provision for bonus to employees 12,000 9,000
Accelerated tax depreciation {1.547) (251) Provision against customer claims 31.866 .
Provision against non-performing advances classified in sub- (4.370) (3.504) Income tax payable - 28,704
Frovision for custorner claimms (8.845) - Others 99545 12.704
Other provisions (1.750) (1.685) 132,659 117,642
(1653 (549 lud t of Rs. 25, 829 th d (2015: Rs. 31,022 th d) t of interest
. . . . .. 15.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 25, thousand [2015: Rs. 31,022 thousand) on account of interes
Defered debits recognised in equity arising due to: payable fo related parties.
Surplus on revaluation of available for sale securities 5027 3,073
Closing deferred fax asset (13,386) (1.881) 16.  SHARE CAPITAL
12. OTHER ASSETS 16.1 Avthorised Capital
Income / rmrk—up_ur:cm::d inlocal curency - note 12,1 and 12.2 353,042 295,549 2016 e . o e
Advances, depaosits, advance rent and other prepayments 15,615 17.804
. . Number of shares Rupees in "000
Advance taxation - net of provision 3.656 -
Branch adjustrment account 28,510 5,101
Stationary and stamps in hand 2691 | 419 w M Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 2,000,000 2,000,000
Others 51.553 11.421
455,067 331,794
Frovision against other assets - note 12.3 (4,815) (4.815)
Other assets - net of provision 450,252 326,479
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16.3

16.4

17.

18.
18.1

18.2
18.3

19.

21.
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Issued, subscribed and paid up

2016 2M5
Number of shares Ordinary shares of Rs, 10 each:
25,500,000 25,500,000 Fully paid in cash 255,000 255,000
48,082,476 48,082,476 Bsued as bonus shares 480,825 480,825
53,015,200 5,015,200 ssued for considerafion other than cash 20,152 20,152
78,597,676 78597 676 785977 785977

The Government of Azad Jammu and Eashmir and Azad Kashmir 5aw Mills Corporation own
100% percent of ordinary shares of the Bank as on December 31, 2014 in proportion of 80% and
20% respectively.

2016 2015
Number of shares
Reconciliation of number of erdinary shares
Shares al the beginning of the year 78597676 65,498,063
Shares issued during the year - 13,099,613
Shares at the yvear end 7B.397.676 TB.597.676
2016 2015
Rupees in "000
SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX
Surplus on revaluation of available for sale securities
Urnits of mutual funds - listed 27875 13,510
Related defemrad lax iability (9.758) (4.727)
18,117 8,781
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Direct credit substitutes
- Guarantees in favour of Others 2,330 -
Commitments to extend credit 283,995 236,323
Bills for collection 69,963 5,352

Bills for collection represent bills drawn in favour of varous financial institutions on behalf of the
Bank's customers. These are accepted by the Bank as an agent and the Bank does not camy any
credit risk in respect of these bills.

OFF BALANCE SHEET FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Off balance sheet financial instruments, referred to as derivatives are contracts the characteristics
of which are derived from those of underying assets. These include forwards and swaps in money
and foreign exchange markets. The Bank has no off balance sheet financial instrument at the
year end,

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Bank at present does not offer any derivative product.

2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000
MARK-UP / RETURM / INTEREST EARNED
On loans and advances o customers - note 221 A6, 502 347,786
On investment in
held to matunty securities 87772 119,317
On deposits with financial institutions 312,524 307,401
808,778 794,704

24,
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This includes an amount of Rs.27,755 thousand [2015: Rs. 37,524 thousand) on account of interast
earned on advance given to a related party.

2016 2015
Rupees in "000
MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED
On depaosits 333,382 375,948

This includes an amount of Rs. 184,461 thousand  (2015: Rs. 287.424 thousand) on account of
interest expense on deposits received from related parties.

GAIN ON SALE OF SECURITIES - NET

This represents gain on disposal of units of isted mutual funds.

2016 2015
Rupees in "000
OTHER INCOME
Armortization of defered Government grant - 9
Gain on sale of ixed asset 1.840 1,840
Site visits and fee collection charges 3779 4954
2,619 3,060
2016 2015
Rupees in "000
ADMIMISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, allowances, etc. 167,160 145,222
Gratuity - nole 30.1 5,614 4,185
Contrbution to provident fund - note 302 4,206 3,761
Fee to non executive directors 659 429
Rent, taxes, insurance and electricity, etc. 31.981 30,977
Legal and professional charges 4,442 1,454
Communications 10,780 10,112
Repadirs and maintenance 18,585 18,392
Stationery and printing 8,934 8017
Advertiserment and publicity 1,459 1,224
Auditors' remuneration - note 25.1 1,980 1,320
Donation - 10
Entertainment 5,806 5,695
Depreciation 22974 17,705
Travel and conveyance 6,458 4814
Training ki 7é
Security charges 16,479 14,271
Others 17,437 10,759
324,969 280,424
2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000
Auditors' remuneration
Annual Audit 1,200 850
Half yeary revienw 00 350
Cut of pocket expenses 180 120
1,980 1,320

Mo donafion was given to any donee in which the bank or any of its directors or their spouses had
any interasl
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2016 2015
Rupees in "000
TAXATION
For the year
curent 47,892 48,457
defered (16,532) (3.891)
33,380 44,606
For prior year(s)
cument 5,542 12,220
defered - (1.551)
5,042 10,669
38,902 55,275
Relationship befween fax expense and accounting profit
Profit before taxation 89,608 125,440
Tax at applicable tax rate of 35 percent (2015 : 35 percent 31,343 43,904
Effect of:
charge for prior year 5,542 10,689
expenses not allowed 1,997 1,063
Other (361)
Tax charge for the year 38,902 35,275

The Bank is liable to pay super tax @ 4 percent of the taxable income initially imposed for the Tax
year 2015 and extended for the tax year 2014 also.

2016 2015
BASIC/ DILUTED EARMINGS PER SHARE
Frofit for the year - Rupees ‘000 50,706 70,165
Weighted average number of ordinary shares - numbers FB.597 476 JB.597.474
Basic earnings per share - Rupees 0.65 0.89
There is no dilutive effect on the basic eamings per share of the Bank.
2016 2015
Rupees in "000
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and balonces with treasury banks 1,299,452 8734164
Balances with other banks 3.843.415 3,144,100
3,142 867 4017716
Number of employees
STAFF STRENGTH
Permanent 237 237
Temporary [ on contract basis 139 130
Daily wages g B8
Bank's own staff strength at the end of the vear 385 345
Ovutsourced 124 123
Total staff strength at the end of the year 509 488

302
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STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Gratuity

The Bank confributed Rs.5.416 thousand (2015 Bs. 4,186 thousand) during the year towards
employees gratuity fund.

Prevident fund

The Bank confributed Rs. 4,206 thousand (2015: Rs. 3,781 thousand) during the year towards
employees contributory provident fund.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Managing

Director Director Executives
2016 2015 2006 2015 2016 2015
Rupees in ‘000

Fees - - &48 408 - -
Managerial rermuneralion 4,212 3.888 - - 21859 12273
Contribution to defined confribution plan - - - - 973 722
Contribution o defined gratuily fund 351 324 - - o3 723
Rent and house maintenance 1.846 1,704 - - 4,088 3,035
Utilities 211 174 - - 1,168 B&7
Medical 247 208 - - 1,168 867
Bonus &75 648 - - 1,947 1,639
Leave Encashment 713 570 - 395 -
Others | Fuel Vehicle, Mobile charges,
club Membership & Trevelling) 1.325 1,574 11 21 3.621 3,383

2580  2.110 659 429 34,192 23,509
Number of persons 1 1 8 8 21 13

Executives mean employees, other than the chief executive and directors, whose basic salary
exceeds five hundred thousand rupees in a financial year. The managing director and some
executives are also provided with the Bank's maintained cars.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability setfled, between
knowledgeable wiling parties in an arm’s length tfransaction.

The fair values of fraded investments are based on quoted market prices, except for fradable
securities classified as ‘held-to-maturity’ which are camried at amortised cost.

Fair value of fixed-term loans and deposits, other assets and other liakilifies cannot be calculated
with sufficient reliability due to absence of current and active market for such assets and liabilities
and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments. The provision for impairment of
loans and advances has been calculaled in accordance with the Bank's accounting policy as
stated in note 5.3 to these financial statements.

The maturity and repricing profile and effecfive rates are stated in note 36.4.1. In the opinion of the
management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly
different from their camying values since these assets and hiakilities are either short-ferm in nature
or, in the case of financings and depaosits, are periodically repriced.

Off-balance sheet financial instruments

There are no off-balance sheet financial instruments as at December 31, 2016 [2015: Nil).
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323 The table below analyses the financial and non-financial assets camied at fair values, by valuation
methods. The Bank essentially carries its investments in debt and equity securities at fair values.
Valuation of investments is carmed out as per guidelines specified by the SBF.

The different levels have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1); E"-‘; § % ‘33; 3 E{ g o Eé E g: g ﬁ u;j _@ b
b—] O O O Pe = P — D
- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or E @2 ® ﬁ s 83 g ;Si g S & ﬁ §.-
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) orindirectly (that s, derived from prices) (level 2): and o~ =~ o« =~
- Inputs for the assets or liakilities that are not based on cbservable market data (i.e. unobservable
inputs e.g. estimated future cash flows) (level 3). EhFw ' @R g I L . g
> 8 o M oo S oM 0~ 3
2 u o= W =3 =] o ™ o o .
324 On-balance sheet financial instruments s s HEJ
§" A S
=
= =
- - 2 [T T ' i} B2 B2 o = = 1 ﬂ [0 I ) Q
. 2g 8 (8382 Z8YE 8888 5%k ¢
e : o -
level1 Level2 Level 3 Total EE £g2P%®® ¥ oS5 gI2ws® S o o
I i~ i~
Rupees in ‘000 EE i E
INVESTMENTS - NET &av 2 g
= — — i — (] — (o3
Financial Assets - on balance sheet = i g 9 Eg © 3 e = E“E‘. ﬁ =
e dhee oSNNS 3338 saa¢ c
@ = g e~ il L
Available-for-sale securities EE 5 A :':- = E’ B % ~ % g
Units of mutual funds 157,875 - - 157,875 -;- E = §
e}
2015 = o
£ e 30N W n O e e S eHNg 93 T
(2] o [ |
level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total 8 _o BRI IRNG33 Egﬁﬁ_gnﬂ_gﬂ,% 2
Rupees in "000 Eiﬁ% Egvzﬁﬁpww ﬁﬁagaﬁ—““‘ &
= = — — 5
INVESTMENTS - NET s = %a o
Financial Assets - on balance sheet E 3 E
w8 o
g 2 9
Available-for-sale securities z 3 ?:-
Units of mutual funds 158,510 - - 158,510 ‘é‘ 2 B2 B2 e
o 3 S e 2
The Bank's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels Q g.-" o o m e (il
. . = == = = -
at the date the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer cccurred. There were o 3 8 = g = E-
no fransfers between fair value hierarchy levels 1 and 2 during the year, e - e | E % = = E % = 2
o = o = o o = o b
- z = L 2 - = L 2 - =
q) Financial instruments in level 1 E 3§ g E g 28 2Eg 28 o
> o o 5 = g = L=
v © 9t ecg 5 2 B cw§2 © o
Financial instruments included in level 1 comprise of investments in units of open end mutual funds, E 5 2 I o % c B 2 298 2cs @ o
w O & T = 5 = w O m g2 E 5 = .-
- 2273638338 02 8,5688%88 2 ©
b) Financial instruments in level 2 o ﬂE:r g g % {Z&5&0 g i E < Z ne. S & 0 5 £
z 5 CQSEEEEEE CQSEEEEEEE B &
Currently, no financial instrurments are classified in level 2. s 2 =9 ¢ E g 2 g 2 E = e g E E E E E E %
[ 0 - oo ODOD D0 - OO DOD 2 o
W C o0 2 0 @& O @ D @ D a2 o e Do D O e
- —— I A I I I [ A T T A < ¥

c) Financial insruments in level 3

33

Currently, no inancial instruments are classified in level 3.

Valuation technigues and inputs used in determination of fair values within level 2.
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35.1

35.2

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operating decisions. The
Government of Azad Jammu and Kashmir halds directly and indirectly Bank’s entire share capital
at the year end, therefore all of its departments are related parties of the Bank. Also the Bank has
related party relationships with its directors, key management personnel, enfities over which the
directors are able to exercise significant influence. Transaction with and balances due to [ from
such related parfies have been disclosed in respective notes to the financial statements.

Details of balances due to [ from related parties at the year end and transactions with them
during the year are as follows:

2016 2015
Rupees in "000

Balances
The Government of Azad Jammu and Kashmir and ifs
related departrments
-Advances 250,500 304,744
Deposits 3,645,349 3,279,885
-Mark-up / return / interest accrued on advances 1,872 3,069
-Mark-up / return f interest payable on depaosils 25829 31.022
Transactions
The Government of Azad Jammu ond Koshmir and its
related departments
- Mark-upy/ interest earned 27,755 37,524
- Mark-up/ interest expensed 212,290 287,424
- Bonws shares issued during the year - 130,994
Other Related Parties
Confribution to Staff refirerment benefit plans
- Staff Gratuity Fund 5,616 6,186
- Staff Provident Fund 4,206 3.741
CAPITAL ADEQUACY
Scope of Applications

Standardized Approach is used for calculating the Capital Adequacy for Market and Credit risk
while Basic Indicator Approach (BlA) is used for Operational Risk.

Capital Management

The objective of managing capital is to safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it could confinue to provide adequate refurns to shareholders by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk. It is the policy of the Bank to maintain
a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and fo sustain
future development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on shareholder's returmn is
also recognised and the Bank recognises the need to maintain a balance between the higher
returns that might be possible with greater gearing and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position.

Banks Bank's regulatory capital is analysed into two tiers:

Tier | capital, includes fully paid-up capital, share premium, reserves (excluding foreign exchange
translation reserves) and unappropriated profits [net of losses) etc. after deductions for cerfain
specified items such as book value of infangibles, reciprocal cross holdings in CET 1 insfruments
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of Banking. Financial or Insurance entities, investments in mutual funds exceeding prescribed
limits and 50% of other deductions e.q. majority and significant minority investments in insurance
and other financial entities. Deductions that have come afresh as part of the Basel Ill rules such
as those on account of Defered Tax Assets are also required to be made.Banking, Financial
or Insurance entities, investrments in mutual funds exceeding prescribed limits and 50% of other
deductions e.q. majority and significant minority investments in insurance and other financial
enfities. Deductions that have come afresh as part of the Basel Il rules such as those on account
of Defered Tax Assets are also required to be made,

Tier Il capital under Basel lll is subject to a maximum of 2.5% of total Risk Weighted Assets as of
December 31, 2016. It includes subordinated debt issued prior to January 1, 2013 phasing out
at an annual rate of 10%, Basel Il compliant Tier Il instruments, general provisions for loan losses
[up to a maximum of 1.25 % of credit risk weighted assets), reserves on the revaluation of fixed
assets and available for sale investments [on an after fax basis up fo a maximum of 45 percent),
foreign exchange translafion reserves ete. Basel [l rules however do allow for the inclusion of the
rernaining 35% of the revaluation reserves inlo Tier || capital at an inclusion rate equal to the rale
of deduction specified under the fransifional arangemenis for the coming years uplill 2018. Tier
Il capilal deductions comprise of the remaining 50% olher deduclions noled above, reciprocal
cross holdings in Tier | instruments of Banking, Financial or Insurance entilies efc.

As of December 20146 the Bank must meet a Tier 1 to WA ratic and CAR including CCB of 7.5%
and 10.25% respectively.

Banking operations are categorised as either rading book or banking book and risk-weighted
assets are determined according to specified requirements of Stale Bank of Pakistan that seek to
reflect the varying levels of risk allached lo on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures.
The tolal risk-weighled exposures comprise the credit risk, market risk and operational risk.

COn and off-balance sheet assets in the banking book are broken down to various asset classes
for calculation of credit sk requirement. External ratings for assets, where available, are applied
using the assessments by various External Credit Assessment Institutions (ECAls) and aligned
with appropriate rsk buckets. Otherwise, the exposures are treated as vnrated and relevant
risk weights are applied. In addition, there are fixed risk weights for certain types of exposures
such as refail portfolic and residential mortgage finance for which external rafings are not
applicable. Collaterals if any, are used as credit risk militant after applying appropriate haircuts
under the Comprehensive Approach. Risk weights notified. are hence applied at adjusted
exposures, wherever credit risk mitigation is available. Collaterals used include: Government of
Pakistan guarantees, cash, lien on deposits, shares, government securities, bank and corporate
guarantees and other debt securities that fall within the definifion of eligible collaterals and also
fuliill other specified criteria under the relevant capital adequacy guidelines.

The cdlculation of Caopital Adeguacy enables the Bank to assess the long-term soundness.
As the Bank camries on the business on a wide area network basis, it is critical that it is able to
continuously monitor the exposure across the entire organisation and aggregate the risks so as
to take an integrated approach [ view.
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Capital Adequacy Ratio

Caommaon Bquity Ther | coplial (CET1): Instrurments and reserves

Fuily Poid-up Copitalf Copital deposibed with 589

Balence in Share Premium Account

Reserve for issue of Borws Shares

Generol/ Statutory Reserves

Gainy [Ledses] on dervalives held as Cash Fiow Hedge

Unapphepiatediurramilied profts

Minadfy Infareshs orging from CET1 capital invrements issued 1o third parties by corobdated
bank wibsdianes (amount olowed in CETI copital of the consoldation grous)

CET 1 before Regulalory Adjustments

Totol regulctory acjustments opplied to CETI (Note 35.2.2)

Commaon Bguity Ther 1

Addilonal Tier 1 (AT 1) Capltal

Gludlifying Addifional Tier-1 copital instruments plus any related shore premium

of which: Clossified as equity

of which: Classfed as Babilifies

Agdifional Tier-1 copita instruments B2ved 1o third parfies by cordoldaled subdiciaries |amoun!
cllowed in group AT 1)

of which: instrument ssued by subsichares subject 1o phose ourt

AT belore regulatory adjusivments

Total reguictory acjusiment opphed to AT] capial (Mote 35.2.3)

Agiditional Tier 1 copital affer regulatory odustments

Addifional Tier 1 copiial recognized for copltol adequacy

Tiar | Caoplhal (CET1 + admissible ATI)

Tier 2 Capital

Guddilying Tier 2 copifa instruments under Bosel il phus any related shere premium

Tier 2 copital instnuments subiect o phase-cul amangement saed under pre-Basel I rules
Ther 2 copital instrurments bsued fo thid parties by conschdated subsidianes [amount clowed in
group fier 2

of which: instruments Bsued by subsidianes subject 1o phase out

Generol provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to maximum of 125% of Credit Risk
Weighted Assats

Revalotion Reserves (net of fowes)

of which: Revaluafion resendes on fived asety

of which: Unrealized gains/losses on AF3

Forsign Exchange Transkation Resenes

UnclisciosedOiher Resares [ ony)

T2 balore regulatory adjusiments

Tetol reguictory adusirment oppled to T2 copltal (Noke 35.2.4)
Ther 2 copital [T2) atter regulctory odjustments

Ther 2 copital recognized for copltal odeguacy

Parfion of Additional Tier | copifal recognized in Tier 2 copiftal
Total Ter 2 capital admissible for capial adequacy

TOTAL CAPTAL (T1 + admissible T2)

Tolal Risk Welghted Assels (RWA) - note 35.4

Copital Rofies and bufters (in percentoge of risk weighled asseb)

CET1 fo foiol RWA

Ther-1 capiiol o fotcl RYWA,

Total capital fo total RivA,

Bank specific buther requirement |minimum CET1 requinement phus coaplhal consenvafion butfer
plus any otiher butier requirement]

of which: capital conservation bauller recuinement

of whisch: ceuntercycical buller requirerment

of which: D-3B or G-318 bulfer requirerment

CET ovollobile bo rmeet bultens (o5 a percentoge of sk weighted assets)
Natienal mindmurn coplhol requirerments prescibed by 58P

CET1 minirnism ratic

Tiar | mrinimur rafic

Tetol capitel minirram rotio

www.bankajk.com

2016 2015

Rupees in ‘000
785977 785577
145225 24,519
53l 202 80,494
#3202 B0, 496
%3120 BA0, 474
57,410 54,804
18,119 8,781
18,119 8781
75520 65,588
75829 65,588
75529 65,588
75,529 45,585
1,006,731 44,081
4755068 4,082,115
15.58% 2.77%
15.58% 2.77%
21.17% 23.35%
5.50%
1401%: -
16.23%

&00%

7.50% S00%
1000% 7.50%
10,00%

3522

35.2.3

35.2.4

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments
Goodwil [net ol reloted delemed fox kabiity)
Al ottver infongitles (net of any essecicied delemed ox lobilhy)
Shorticl in provisons ogainst closifed osets
Defemed fax ausets that rety on futune proftability exchuding those arsing fom tempanany
differences [rned of reloted tox bobility]
Defired-tenefit pendion fund net assets
Reciproca oo holdings in CET copial indfrurments of bonking. fnoncial and indunoncs entities
Cientih B hiadge resane
rweastrent in cwn shares) CET1 imstruments
Secuiization gain on sole
Copiial shorfial of reguicted subsdiones
Deificit on account of revabsaticn from bank's hosdings of feed assets’ AFS
Inwestrments in fhe copital instruments of bonking, fnoncial and insunonc.e entifies that ane cutside
the scope of reguiatony consoldation, whene the bank does not cwn more than 10% of the
Bsued shae copifal [amount abowe 10% threshold)
Sgnificant invesiments in the common stocks ol banking, financial ond inronce enfSes fhal ae
oubide fhe scope of reguaatory conscldation [amount above 105 frrethold)
Delemed Tax Assats aring from temporary dilferences (armound abave 10% theeshold, ned of
redated ro Babity)
Anncunt exceedng 15% fhreshokd

of which: significant invesirments in the common socks of financial entifies

of which; defemed tax assets asing from lemponary diferences
Hatienal specific regulatony odustments applied fo CET1 copital

Iveestrnents in TRCs of other banls exceeding the prescrioed imi

Aty ather deduction speciied by 5B7 [menfion delal)
Adpstment lo CET1 due fo insulficient AT and Tier 2 1o cover deduciions.
Tohal reguictory adjushments appbed o CETI

Additional Tier-1 & Tier-1 Capital: regulatery adjustments

Irveestrrent i rutucl funds exceeding five prescribed it (58P speciic odjusinnent]
Irwvestrnenit in cwn AT copital instnunents

Reciproca cross holdings in Additional Ter | copial insurents of Donking. financial and
Insronce enfiifies

Irveasirments in fhe copital ingtnments of bonking. finonclal and inpeonce entities that ane cutide
ther scope of reguiatony comcldation, whene the bank does not own moee tran 10% of the
Bsued shore copital [amount abowe 105 threshold)

Significant investrments in the copital instruments of bonking, fnancial and insurancs entities that
o outsche the scope of regulatony corsoldation

Pertion al deduction cppbed 50050 fo Tier-1 and Tier-2 copilal baved on pre-Basel Il reatrment
which, during ronditicnal pesiad, rermain wubject to deduction from aoddiona fier-1 coptal
Adguatment fo Additional Tier | due ba insufficient Tier 2 fo cover deduction

Tohal reguisiory adjusirment opplied o AT1 copital

Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments

Pertion al deduction cppbed 50050 fo Tier-1 and Tier-2 copilal baved on pre-Basel Il realrment
which, during fronsitional pesiod, remain subject to deduction from fier-2 copital

Reciprocd cross holdings in Tier 2 insiruments of banking, finencial ond infuronce enfifes
Iwastrrent in own Ther 2 copital instrument

Ivvestments in e copital instruments of barking, financial and insurance entifies that ane cutude
the scope of reguiatony consoldation, whene the bank does nat cwn mone than 105 of the
Bsued share copital [ameunt abowe 105 thieshold)

Sgnificant invesirments in the copital inttuments eBsued By banking, finoncial ond insuronce
anfities that ore outside e soope of regulahony consobdation

Tohad reguiciory adjustment applied ko T2 capdal

BAJK |

2016 2015
Rupees in "000
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2016 2015 Balance sheet of the Uneder regubstory
. published financial seape o
35.2.5 Additional Information Rupees in ‘000 statements consolidation
Risk Welghted Assefs subject to pre-Basel lll reatment As at Decamber 31, 2016
Risk wighbed caets in respect of deduction Bems [which during the fronsitional pedod wil be Rupies in ‘000
fisk wesighted wibject fo Pre-Based Il Treatrment] Liab#Sies & Equity
i Bils payabie EXal) 8714
of which: celemed bax assebs Bomowings - -
of which: Defined-benefit persion fund net assets Depatits and afher accounts 7845425 7845625
ol which: Recognized porfion of invediment in copBal ol banking, inancial ond inuronce ol which: hox I n AT -
anfities whane holding i ke thon 10% of e ssued common share copital of e entity = - mmh;mwmmrﬁmz .| | :I
ol which: Recognized portion of investment in coplal of banking, inancial ond inurance mbﬂiﬂmmTMi!ﬂﬂﬂ!hmm - -
enfifies whens halding s more frian 10% of the kased commen thane capital of fhe ensty - . e e 1o
Amaunts balow the theesholds for deduction (belone sk welghling) al which: DTLs rebated o infongitle auaty
Moresigrificant investrments in the copitol of ciher financiol enfities - gm:mﬁ“mmww“rmn
Signiicant nvestments in fhe common shock of financia enlities - Durmed.Gummnlguﬂ 3 =
Dedomed box ossels arking from femponary differences (net of relabed tox kablity) - Oiher Fabifties 132,459 132459
M on B Inchuskon of i Ther 2 Tatal l:m 7,587,000 7,587,000
Provisions slighle lor inchusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposues subject bo slandardized opproach al which: amaunt eigible lor CET] TES.7T 785977
[xier to appication of cap] . . :rw;:amunrmrum m.'i-_rﬂ | Ew_ﬂjl
Cop an inclusion of provisons in Tier 2 under standardized opproach 4,755,588 4052115 of which: parfian sligitie for inclusion in CETI [previde breakup] = =
Prowviskors efigithe for inciusion in Tier 2 in respect of expoures subject bo internal rofings-bosed - ol which: perlion eigible for inclusion in Tier 2 - -
aperooch [peor o appication of cap) . Nooppropdcled prof I e
Cop ferinciusion of pravisons in Tier 2 under infemal rafings-bosed approach - - al which: porfion sligible tor inclusion in CETI E E
al which: porfion eligible for inclusion in AT1 - -
al which: porfion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 - -
353 Capital Sruchure ReconciliaBon ot g ] ]
Balance sheet of the Under requlatory al which: Bevalualion resenes on Fixed Assels =
publizhed financial scope of al which: Urreakzed Gains/Losses on AFS 18,119 18.11
statements consalidation In case of Deficit on revaksation [deduction frem CET1) -
As at December 31, 2016 Tolal equity #4321 P49 300
R In 000 Total liabiities & squity 8,738,321 8,934,321
Assets
Cash ond bolences with recry bonks 259,452 1 299,452 “;“"T“f the
Baiances with other baniks 3843415 3E43.415 P m‘“”"l bancisl
Lending to financial instihutions. - -
Invastnments &04,748 S04, 748 As at December 31, 26
Advances 2,600,430 2,609,430 Rupees in 000
Cprerating fosd ossats 115,438 115,638
Deafermad fom aiuabs |3.I33¢ 13'33,5 camm Et'.lr'ﬂh"l tﬂpld{CEl'l]: Instrements and reserves
Crther cuats 252 450,252 Fully Paichup Capital Ta5.9TH
Tabal assets 8,934,321 8,934,321 Balance in Share Premium Account 1
Reserve for isuwe of Bonus Shares
Uakitles & Equity Generalf Satutory Reserves
Bils paryabie 8714 &7 Gainf|Losses] on derdvatives held as Cash Fow Hedgs ]
Bermowings - Unoppropriated /unremitted prafits/ (lazses) 145,223
Depasits and offver accounts TB45,425 TRa54
Sub-ordinated loans . Mirwrity Interests arsing trom CET1 copital insturments issued ta thind party by consolidated
Lablifies ogainst assets subject o finance lease bank subsidianes (amount allcwed in CET] capial of the consoldation group)
Defermed fox iobiities CET 1 before Reguiatory Adjustments 31202
Determed Govemment gront )
Orttrer abiifies 132,459 132 Commen Equity Tier 1 capital: Reguictory adjustments
Total labilifies 7,587,000 7,987,000 ml_rw ﬂrm::! g«wmw S
infargioles assecia etemed
ST g 75,977 977 Shorio of rovions cgarst closifed cmel v
Unappropriated prost 145,225 145225 Defermed fox cazets that rely on future proftosiity exchuding those criing fram temperary
Surplus en revoluction of amsets - net 18119 18119 differences |net aof related bax babilty)
Total iabiliies & equity 8,734,321 8,734,321 Definsc-benedt pansion fund nef assels
Reciprocal cross holdings in CET] capital insruments
Assets Cash flow hedge reserve
Cash and bolonces with frecury bonks 1,279,452 1,299,452 IreEstrrEnt i own shares) CETT instnoments
Bakanced with other bonks 3843415 3B43 415 Secumolion goln or 30l
Lar-dr-qmrsmu iratitutions pr 3 ém?u:l Capital sharfall of reguicted wbstidiories
Invasima B B . . " Daeficit an account of revaleation from bank's holdings of fved assets! AFS
of which: Mon-sigrificont investmeets in the copital inilrurnenis. of banking, Snanclal ond Inwestments in the copital instruments of Banking, financial and insurance entifies that are
insunonce enifies. sacescing 10%. thrashoid ) ) ) outside the scope of regulatony canscidation, whers the bank does not cwn mere than 10%
of which: wqcmrmmmrsnmaupﬂﬂ insfruments ksued by banking, fnancial and af the Based thare capital famount abeve 10% threshold)
m*;ﬁw mﬁ:ﬁ‘“ reguictory '";:W Significant investments in the Sopifal instrurments kaued by banking, fnanckal and
 Mutual Funds encesding reguio vathoid insurance entifies that are outiide the scope of latory cansolidation (amount abave 108
ol which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrument (sepanate for CET1, ATI, T2 '“.,w:., bt :
_ Defemed Tax Assets arsing from temporary differences [omount above 10% threshold, net of
af which: ativen [mention cebals) related tax Babiity)
Advances 2409, 430 2409430 Amount exceeding 5% threshold
shortfall in provisions excess of fofol EL amount over eligible provisions uncier IRE B ] af which: sgnificant investments in the comman stocks of financial entities
- ) . 57,410 57.410 aof which: defered tax asets aritng from fempaorory differences
generol proviions reflected in Tier 2 copital Hational specific regulatony adjustments applied fo CETI copital
Fued Assats 115,438 115458 af which: Investmant in TFCs of ather bonks excesding the prescribed im
Catormed Tax Assets y 13,385 13,386 of which: Any other deduction specified by SBP [mention detol]
Wt EDTAS Mt bk fon full. e profiabity aschicing Moo cldng fom hempanay Reguiatory adustmant applied o CETI dus fo insuficient AT1 and Tier 2 1o cover deduction
Tobal regulak dush ts opplied o CETI
af which: DTAs arsing fom temporany differences exceeding reguictory threshold Common Eu;pll;rmﬂ 231,202
AT FAL LA Addifional Ther 1 (AT 1) Capé#ial
. ; . Gpalitying Additicnal Tier-1 instrements plus ony related share premium
vufm'ich:G-w-:Mi af which: Clossified os equity
vufm'ich:bimqi;ﬂvw ) af which: Clossified o lobiities
of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net asets Additional Tier| copital instruments ksued by consoidated subsidories and heid by third
Tokal ossets 8,934,321 B938,321 porties [omount alowed in group AT 1)
af which: instrument isuwed by subsidiaries subject to phase out
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Balance shaet of the
N e i 354 Capital Adequacy
statements
As at Decembeer 31, 216 The capital to sk weighted assets ratio, calculated in accordance with the State Bank of Pakistan's
Hupees in 000 guidelines on capital adequacy, using standardised approaches for credit and market risks and
Additional Tier 1 Capitak regulatory adjustments basic indicator approach for operational risk is presented below.
Irvvestment in rouheal fundh exceeding the prescribed mit (5BP specific odustment)
Invvestrnant in cwn ATI coplbal instnements i:ﬂ[itc'll Risk mlwﬂd
Reciprocol cross holdings in Acdiiond Tier 1 copial instrurments req uirements assets
Investrnants in the copifcl instrurments of banking. nancial ond rswronce entifies that ore cutside the 2016 2015 2016 2015
scope of reguiatony comsoldation, where the bank does not cwn mere than | 0% of the ksued share copital
[amount above 10% threshold] Risk-weighted exposures Rupees in "000
Significant investments in the capitcl insuments Bswed by barking, financial and rsurance entities that are
cutice the scope of reguiatary consoication Credit Risk
Perlicn of deduction oppbed 50:50 fo cone copilal and supplementary capital based on pre-Basel 1
treatrment which, during franaificnal period, remain asbjec! to deduetion fram e capital
Reguiaton adiusiments appled o Adcitional Tier | due to nsuticient Tier 2 fo cover deductions Portfolios subject to standardized
Total of Reguiatery Adistment oppded to AT copifal approach (simple or comprehensive)
Adgitional Tier | copital
Addifionol Tier 1 copdlal recognized for copifal adequacy
Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible ATI) 531 202 On-Balance sheet
Tier 2 Capital Claims on banks 118,494 84,141 1,185,941 841,410
g‘;mmm;:r - W“';ﬁfmmlmﬁim:ﬂmm Past due loans 36272 17.590 362717 175902
Tier 2 capital nstruments isued 1o third party by consobdated subsidiores jomount alowed in group fier 2) Claims categorized as retail portfolic 138,103 138,592 1.381.025 1.385918
- ¥ 7 Tearits kpuad by aubtidicaies subject 1= Ehate oul ] Clairns fully secured by residential property 12,274 20,706 122742 207065
General Provisions of genenal resarves for loon losses-up 1o mesdrmumm of 1.258% of Credit Risk Weighted Assats 57410 B .
Brervedrcafion Reserves ] Operating Fixed Assets 11,564 12,528 115,638 125283
af which: Revoluation reservas on fixed ousets Al other assets 44975 32836 450,252 328,340
B e e morstmon oo N 361882 306393 3618815 _ 449.752
Undisclased Other Reserves (if arry) ] Off balance sheet items
:- 2 mpr':_ v ok . TR Mon-market related
Portion of deduction cppled S0:50 to cone copital and supplerrentary capital ased on pre-Basel B Direct credit substitute - - -
wreatrmant which, during randificnal period, raman wbiec! b desuetion tram fier-2 eagital : _ : :
Reciprocal eross holdings in Tier 2 instrurmants
Krraskmant o Tiar 2 copial insment Total credit risk 341,882 3043793 3618815 3063938
Invvestrnants in the copifel instrurments of banking. nancial ond rswronce entifies that ore cutside the Market risk
scope of reguiniory corsoldation, whare fhe bonk does net own more thon 10% of the ssued share copifal
[armeunt above 10% theashold) Porifolios subject to standardized approach
Sigrificomt investments in the: coplicl ""‘""-'"_""""w"'f bawidng. Ancecicl and nsuronce sntties tht o Equity posifion risk 31,575 47,300 315750 317,020
m't:;ﬁ;:ﬂﬂmmm?:u copital ] Operational risk 82052 546414 820523 671157
Ties 2 capital (12) 75529 Total 475509 410,107 4755088 4,052,115
Tier 2 capital recogrized for capital cdequocy 75,529
?:-:Tmﬁfmmmzmu a:;:::wﬂal — 5 Capital Adequacy Ratios Req |m:m EM I Req ||-.E.:m EM |
TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible 12) ).004,731 a -2 o ua
CET1 to total Rwa 6007 19.58% 00 21.73%
Tier-1 capital to total BWA, 7.50% 19.58% 7.50% 21.73%
Total capital to total RwWa 1000 21.07% 1000 23.35%
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355 Main Features Template of Regulatory Capital Instruments 35, RISK MANAGEMENT

Issuier Bank of Azad Jammu and Kashmir
Unigque identifier [eg CUSIP, ISIN or Bloomberg Bank of Azad Jammu and Kashmir
identifier for private placement)

The Bank's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the credit and interest rate risk associated with
various financial assets and liakilities respectively.

The Bank finances its operations through equity, deposits and management of working capital with a view to

Governing law(s) of the instrument Laws applicable in State of Azad Jammu

Regulatory freatment

Transitional Basel Il nules
Fost-transitional Basel Il rules

Eligible at solo / group f group & solo

Insfrument type
Amount recognised in requlatory capital
[Cumrency in PER thousands, as of reporiing

and Kashmir

Common equity Tier 1
Common equity Tier 1
Standalone
Common Shares
785,977

maintaining a reasonable mix between the varous sources of finance to minimize sk,

Taken as a whole, risk arising from the Bank's financial instruments is limited as there s no significant exposure fo
market risk in respect of such instruments.

Bank regulary reviews and updates policy manuals and procedures in accordance with domestic regulatory

ervironment and internafional standards.

date) PER 10 3.1 Credit risk
Shareholder equity
Far value of instrument 2006 Credit risk arises from the potenfial that an obligor is either unwiling to perform on an obligation or its ability
Accounting classification Perpetual is impaired resulting in economic loss to the Bank, The Bank takes necessary measures to contral such risk b
Criginal date of Bsuance Mo maturity pﬂ i nd . . X . . . : G
Perpetual or dated No manitoring credit exposures, limiting fransactions with specific counter parties with increased likelihood of default
Original maturity date and conlinually assessing the creditworthiness of counter parlies.
lssuer call subject to prior supenvisory approval Mot applicable
356.1.1 SEGMENT INFORMATION
Optional call date, confingent call dates and
redempfion amount Mot applicable 35.1.1.1 Segments by class of business
Subsequent call dates, it applicable Mot applicable 2016
Mot applicable - -
Coupons / dividends Mo Advances (Gross) Deposits «Contmge_mes and
Fixed or floating dividend/coupon Fully discretionary Commitments
Coupon rate and any related index Mo R"'PEES in Percent R”PEES in Percent R”PEES in Percent
000 000 000
Existence of a dividend stopper Not applicable Agriculture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing 327,643 11.54 - - - -
Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or Mot applicable Construction 27.940 0.78 = -
mndﬂmw i i Not Gpplr:ﬂble Power (electrcity]. Gas, Water, Sanitary - - 6,725 0.09 - -
Existence of step up or other incentive to Mot applicable
redeern Not applicable Whalesale and Retail Trade 651,195 2294 54,240 0.4% - -
Noncumulative or cumulafive Mot applicable Services - 59.514 0.74 -
Convertible or non-convertible ) Individuals 1,499,299 5281  4.059.797 51.75 2,330 08
If convertible, conversion tigger (s) Mot applicable Gover nt 250,500 887 3.645.349 4672 i
If convertible, fully or particlly Not applicable Others 82,576 2.91 = = 283,995 99
If convertible, conversion rate 2,839,153 100 7.845.625 100 286,325 100
If convertible, mandatory or oplional conversion  Not applicable
Mot applicable 2015
If convertible, specify instrument type convertible MNoat applicable - -
intc Mot applicable Advances (Gross) Deposits Contingencies and
If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it Mot applicable Commitments
converts info . . .
Write-down feature Rupees in Percent Rupees in Parcent Rupees in Parcent
If write-down, write-down frigger(s) Mol applicable ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Agriculiure, Forestry, Hunfing and Fishing 414246 13.88 - - - -
If WT'“E"'EIUW“.. fU" or FH:IFHEI' Mo Construction 28252 0.95
If write-down, permanent or lermporary Mol applicable Power (elechicity), Gas, Waler, Sanitary i i £.379 0.09 i i
If |Em|j.|j|'¢r'ﬁ|r write-cown, degcripli()n of wrile up Wholesals and Eetail Trade R&T 269 1201 51.442 0.469
mec;_l*!c::rﬁg.m _ ) o Services - - 56,444 074 - 5
RO sy tion hierarchy in iquiciation Individuals 1,532,973 5137 4046747 54.39 . .
[specily insfrument ype immediately senior fo
instrurment)” Government 364,668 12.22 3079 BAS 44 .08 - -
NMon-compliant fransitioned features Others 77.081 2.58 - - 247 559 100.00
2984 469 100 7440877 100 247 559 100

If yes, specily non-compliant features
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www.hanka]h.cum“



| BAJK

36.0.1.2

36.1.1.3

d6.1.1.4

www.bankajk.com

Segments by sector

Public / Government

Private

Public / Governmeant

Private

BAUK |

36.1.1.5 GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT ANALYSIS

DETAILS OF NON-PERFORMING ADVANCES AND SPECIFIC
PROVISIONS BY CLASS OF BUSINESS SEGMENT

Agriculiure, Foresiry, Hunfing and Fishing

Construction

Power [electrcity), Gas, Water, Sanitary -

Wholesale and Retal Trade
Services

Individuals

Government

Others

DETAILS OF NON-PERFORMING ADVANCES AND SPECIFIC

PROVISIONS BY SECTOR

Public / Government
Private

2016 2016
. Contingencies and Profit Total assets Netassets  Contingencies
Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments befﬁr:n employed employed  and Commit-
taxat ments
Rupees in Rupees in Rupees in
000  Percent  hggg  Percent 000 Percmnt Rupees in ‘000
250,500 882 3665349 46.72 - - Pakistan (Azad Jammu and Kashrmir) 89,408 8,934,321 949 321 284,325
2,588,653 %1.18 4,180,276 5328 286,323 100,00 Ofthers - - F =
2839153 100 7845625 100 286,325 100 B9.808 B.934.321 249 321 284,325
2015 2015
. Contingencies and Profit Net assets  Contingenci
Advances (Gross Deposits . Total assets gendes
(Gross) ho Commitments efore. employed employed  and Commit-
; ; ; ments
Ru!:ees in Percent Ru!:ees in Percent Ru!:ees in Percent
000 000 000 Rupees in ‘000
64,663 222 3279865 44.08 - - Pakistan (Azad Jammu and Kashrmii) 125,440 8,455,430 889,277 247,559
2,619,801 B/.78 4,141,012 2592 247 559 100.00 Others .
2584469 100 7440877 100 247 55% 100 m 8,455,430 BE9.277 247 559
3&.1.1.5. 1Contingencies and commitments include amounts given in note 20 except bills for collection.
352 Credit Risk-general disclosures
2016 2015 . . . .
Rupees in '000 The Bank has adopted Standardized approach of Basel Il for calculation of capital charge against
Classified Specific Classified Specific credit risk in line with the 5BP's requirements.
Adhwanoes Provisions Adhwinoes Provisions
Held Held 35.2.1 Credit Risk: Disclosures for porifolio subject to the Standardized Approach
121415 - 73812 9.42) Under standardized approach, the capital requirement is based on the credit rating assigned to
. . . the counter parties by the External Credit Assessment Institutions (ECAIS) duly recognized by SBP for
. : capital adequacy purposes. Bank utilizes, wherever available, the credit rafings assigned by the
144,354 - 36872 34,201 SBP recognized ECAs, viz. PACRA [Pakistan Credit Rating Agency ), JCR-VIS (Japan Credit Rating
) ) ) Company- Vital Information Systems). Credit rating data for advances is obtained from recognized
131.676 - 129.536 90,437 External Credit Assessment Institutions and then mapped to State Bank of Pakistan's Rafing Grades.
- - - Type of Exposures for which the ratings from the External Credit Rafing Agencies are used by the
397445 - 240220 94,059 Bank.
397,445 - 240,730 24,059
397 445 - 240,750 P4.05%
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Long Term Ratings Grades Mapping 346.3.1 Foreign exchange risk

5BFP Rating FACRA JCR-VIS Fitch Moody's S&P ECA Scores Foreign exchange risk [ cumency sk is defined as risk of loss to eamings and capital arising from
! A, AAA AAA Aca AAA 1 adverse movements in cumency exchange rates. The Bank is not exposed to the foreign exchange
! Al Adt Adt Agl Adt 1 risk since all the Bank's assets and liabilities are held in the local curency i.e. Pak Rupees.
1 Al Al Al Aoz AA 1
1 AA- AA- AA- Aa3 AA- 1 3632 Equity posifion risk
2 A At At Al At 2 Itis the risk of loss to earnings or capital as a result from unfaveorable fluctuations in prices of shares in
2 A A A A2 A ? which the Bank camies long and / or short positions, in its frading book.
2 Ae Ae As A3 A- 2
3 BBB+ BRE+ BRE+ Baal BBB+ 3 ALCO is responsible for making investment decisions in the capital market and setting limits that
3 BBE BEEB BEEB Boa? BBEB 3 are a component of the risk management framewaork. Portfolio imits are assigned by the ALCO
3 BBB- BEE- BEE- Boad BBE- 3 to guard against concentration risk and these limits are reviewed and revised periodically. Limit
4 BB+ BE+ BE+ Bal BE+ 4 ranitoring is done on daily basis, Limit breaches it any are promptly reporfed fo ALCO with proper
4 BB BB BB BaZ BB 4 reason and justification.
4 BE- BEB- BEB- Ba3 BEB- 4
5 B+ B+ B+ 8] B+ 56 3633 Yield / interest rate risk
@ 6 & & &2 e b Yield curve risk is the risk that a financial instrument will suffer either a decline because future changes
s B- B- B- B3 B- 3.6 in prevailing interest rates impact assets more or less than they impact liakilifies. Risk is addressed by
6 CCCH and ClCrond  CCCHand Caal and CCC+and / ALCO that reviews the interest rate dynamics at regular infervals and decides re-pricing of assefs

above above above above above and liakilities to ensure that the spread of the Bank remains at an acceptable level.
Short Term Rafings Grades Mapping 3634 Mismalch of interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities

ALl PACRA ICR-VIS Fitch Moody's S&F Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet instruments is based on the earlier of
3 Al Al f Pl Arl+Acd confractual re-pricing or maturity date and tor off-balance sheet instruments is based on settlernent
52 A2 A2 F2 P-2 A2 date.
53 A3 A-S F3 P-3 A3
54 Others Others Others Others Others

Bank uses credit assessments for constantly monitoring initial credit screening and overall risk profile
of the entire credit portfolio.

The credit portfolio of the Bank is restricted to operations in State of Azad Jommu and Kashmir which
mainky comprise exposures fo Government or Semi -Govl. departrments. The exposures other than
Government relates to Consumer, Microfinances or non corporate entities.

Bank maintain high quality investments and exposure to other Banks. The Investments in Term
Finance Cerlificates are made in high quality bonds and mutual funds, as stated in note 9.4 to
these financial staternents.

The Bank also monitor and maintain its exposure to other banks with quality credit rating which are
not lower than A" category

363 Market Risk:

Market risk is the risk that the value of on and off -balance sheet positions of the Bank will be adversehy
affected by movemenis in inferest rates, foreign exchange rates and equily prices resulling in a loss
to earnings and capital. The Bank's interest rates exposure comprises those onginating from investing
and lending activiies. The Asset and Liability Management Committee of the Bank monitors and
manages the interest rates risk with the objective of limiting the potential adverse effect on the
profitability of the Bank.

www.bankajk.com www.banka]k.cum“
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Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes and system or
from external events,

The Bark's cperational risk management fromework, as laid down in the operafional risk pelicy,
duly approved by BOD. i flexible enough to implement in stages and permits the overall fisk
management approach fo evolve in the light of organizational leaming and the fulure needs
of the Bank. Operational loss events are reviewed and appropriate corective actions taken on
an ongoing basis, including measures to improve control procedures with respect to design and
operalive effectiveness.

NOM-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 08, 2017 hove announced dividend @10 percent
(2015 Nil}. The appropriation will be approved in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 do not include the effect of the
appropriation which will be accounted forin the financial statements for the year ending December
31, 2014,

GEMERAL

Caplions as prescribed by BSD Circular No. 4 dated February 17, 2006 ssued by the SEP in respect
of which there are no amounts have not been reproduced in these inancial stalemenis excepl for
the statement of inoncial position and profit and loss account.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements were authomzed for issue by the Board of Directonrs of the Bank on May

o8, 20017
\\H - J
i

‘&:’ Management Director r ( r

bankajk.

com
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DISTRICT-WISE LOCATION OF BRANCHES
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BRANCH NETWORK

(Together We Reach)

BAJK

ZONE WISE ADDRESSES/CONTACTS OF BRANCHES

Muzaffarabad Zone

Main Branch Muzaffarakad (0001)
Bank Square, Chattar, Muzaffarabad
TEL: 05822-921254

FaX: 05822 921345

E-mail: manager000] @bankajk.com

Athmugam Branch (0008)

Main Bazar aAthmugam, District Neelum, AJK
TEL: 05821 920033

FAX: 05821 920033

E-mail: manager08Ebankajk.com

Gari-Dupata Branch (0017)

Main Bazar Gari-Dupata, Muzaffarabad, AJK
TEL: 05822 922503

FAX: 05822 922502

E-mail: manager00 1 7@bankajk.com

Lower Plate Branch (0018)

Near Cilty Hospital Lower Plale,
Muzaftaratad, Ak

TEL: 05822 920444

FAX: 05822 4426464

E-mail: manager001 8@bankajk.com

Chatter Klass Branch (0017%)

Main Bazar Chatter Klass, Muzaifarabad, AJK
TEL: 05822 922302

FaX: 05822 922303

E-mail: manager001¥@bankajk.com

Chakar Branch (0022)

Main Bazar Chakar, District Hatfian. AJK
TEL: 05822 22003

FAX: 05822 922002

E-mail: manager0D22@bankajk.com

Pathika Branch (0024)

Main Bazar Pathika,

District Muzaffarabad, AJK

TEL: 05822 922108

FAX: 05822-922109

E-mail: managerd024@bankajk.com

Madina Market Branch (0028)
Madina Market, Muzaffarabad, AJK
TEL: 05822 9231246

FaX: 05822 923127

E-mail: manager0028Ebankajk.com

Hatlian Branch (0034)

Main Bazar Hattian, District Hattian, AJK
TEL: 05822 922431

FAX: 05822 922632

E-mail: manager0D34@bankajk.com

Chakothi Branch (0037)

Main Bazar Chakholi, District Haltian, AJK
TEL: 05822-921824

E-mail: manager0037@bankajk.com

District Complex Muzaffarabad Branch (0040)
Old Secretriate, District Complex,
Muzaffarabd

TEL: 05822-920187

FAX: 05822-920043

E-mail: managerD040@bankajk.com

Sharda Branch (0043)
Main Bazar Sharda, District Neelum, AJK
TEL: 05821-920802

FAX: 05821-920802

E-mail: manager0043@bankajk.com

Joora Branch (0052)

Joora, District Neglum, AJK

TEL: 05821 20502

FAX: 05821 920502

E-mail: managerD052@bankajk.co

Ladies Branch, Muzaffarabad (0053)
Hashim Plaza, Poultry Farm Road,
Muzaffarabad, AJK

TEL: 05822-923007-008

FAX: 05822-923007

E-mail: manager0053&@bankajk.com
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Upper Adda Branch (00&1)

Mear AJK University, Campus/Muzafarabad,
TEL: 05822-9207 44

Fax, O5822-920747

E-mail: manager00s] @bankajk.com

Chathian Branch (0042)

srinagar Road, Chathian Bazar

TEL: 05822-922514

FaX, O5822-922514

E-mail: manager00s2@bankajk.com

Kuttan Branch (0043)

Kuttan, Tehsil Athmugam, District Neelam
TEL: 05821-920302

FAX: 0582 1-720301

E-mail: managerl0éd@bankajk.com

Rawalakot Zone

Rawalakot Branch (000&)

Gulf Shopping Complex, Katchary Road,
Rawalakot

TEL: 05824 920049

FaX: 05824 920068

E-mail: managerié@bankajk.com

Bagh Branch (0010)

Main Bazar Bagh, AJK

TEL: 05823 920103

FAX: 05823 920104

E-mail: manager01 0@bankajk.com

Arja Branch (0011)

Bagh/Rawalakot Chowk Arja, District Bagh, AJK
TEL: 05823 221005

FAX: 05823 921004

E-mail: managerd0] 1 @bankajk.com

Pallandri Branch (0013)

Main Bazar Pallandri, AJK

TEL: 05825 220010

FAX: 05825 920009

E-mail: managerd0] 3@bankajk.com

Hajeera Branch (0014)

Main Bazar Haojeera, District Rowalakot,
Azad Kashmir

TEL: 05824 920233

FAX: 05824 920234

E-mail: manager00] é2bankajk.com

Dheerkot Branch (0023)

Main Bazar Dheerkol, District Bagh, AJK
TEL: 05823 921213

FAX: 05823 921214

E-mail: managerd23@bankajk.com

www.bankajk.com

Bandi Abbaspur Branch (0025)

FPul Bazar Bandi Abbaspur,

District Poonch, AJK

TEL: 05824 921027

FAX: 05824 221028

E-mail: managerd025@bankajk.com

Khai-gala Branch (0030)

Main Bazar Khai-gala, District Poonch, AJk
TEL: 05824-220911

FAX: 05824 220712

E-rmail: managerD0I0@bankajk.com

Trar-khal Branch (0032)

Main Bazar Trar-khal, Disfrict Pallandri, AJK
TEL: Q5825 920224

FAX: 05825 920223

E-mail: managerD032@bankajk.com

Kahutta Branch (0038)

Main Bazar Kahutta, District Haveli, AJK
TEL: Q5823-921//2

FAX: 05823-921772

E-mail: managerD038@bankajk.com

Panicla Branch (0037)

Muain Bazar Panicla, District Rawalakof, AJK
TEL: 05824-92] 408

FAX: 05824-921408

E-mail: manager003?@bankajk.com

Bloch Branch (0041}

Muain Bazar Bloch, District Pallandri, AJK
TEL: 05825-2203146

Fax: 05825-520314

E-mail: manager004 ] @bankajk.com

Talian Branch (004%)
Main Bazar Talian, District Sadhnutti, AJK
TEL: 05824-471319

FAK - REEREERRER

E-mail: manager004?@bankajk.com

Therar Branch (0050)

Main Bazar Thorar, District REawalakot, AJK
TEL: 05824 921313

FaX: 05824 921313

E-mail: manager00S0@bankajk.com

CMH Road Branch (0056)

CMH Road, Rawalakot, AJK

TEL: 05824 920545

Fax: 05824 920544

E-mail: manager0lss@bankajk.com

Banbehk Branch (0040)

Tehsll & District Poonch, AJK

TEL: 05824 921104

Fax: 05824 921106

E-mail: manager00sl@bankajk.com

Mirpur Zone

Main Branch Mirpur (002)

Chowk Shaheedan Mirpur, Disfrict Mirpur
TEL: : D582/-921 448

FAX: Q5827-921444

E-rmail: manager0002@bankajk.com

Dadyal Branch (0003)

Magbool Butt Shaheed Chowk, Dadyal
TEL: 05827 923070

FAX: Q5827 9230469

E-mail: manager0003@bankajk.com

Chaksawari Branch (0004)

Opposite Al-Shahzad Hotel Chaksawari
TEL: 05827 922664

Fa: 05827 922665

E-mail: manager00l4@bankajk.com

Islamgarh Branch (000%)

Main Bazar Islamgarh, District Mirpur, AJK
TEL: D5827 922562

Fad: 05827 922563

E-mail: manager00?@bankajk.com

Bhimber Branch (0012)

Main Bazar Bhimber, AJK

TEL: 05828 920505

Fal: 05828 920504

E-mail: manager001 2@bankajk.com

Mirpur F-3 Branch (0015)

Sector F-3 Mirpur, AJK

TEL: 05827 920439

FAX: Q5827 920440

E-mail: manager00] S&2bankajk.com

Pulmenda Branch (0027)

Main Bazar Pulmenda, District Mirpur, AJK
TEL: 05827 922240

FAX: 05827 922261

E-mail: manager0027 @bankajk.com
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Barnala Branch (0029)

Main Bazar Barnala, District Bhimber, AJK
TEL: 05828 922064

Fa: 05828 922063

E-mail: manager002?@bankajk.com

Chowki Branch (0033)

Main Bazar Chowtki, Disirict Bhimber, AJK
TEL: 05828 922162

Fa: 05828 922261

E-mail: manager0033@bankajk.com

Poona Branch (0035)

Main Barar Poona, District Bhimber, AJK
TEL: 05827-485533

FaX: 05B2/-485533

E-mail: manager003s@bankajk.com

Jatlain Branch (0045)

Main Bazar Jatlain, District Mirpur, AJK
TEL: 05827-922764

FAX: Q0B27-922764

E-mail: manager0045@bankajk.com

Mian Muhammad Town Branch (0044)
Main Muhammad Town, District Mirpur, AJK
TEL: 05827-220442

FAX: 05827-920442

E-mail: manager004é@bankajk.com

Jhatti Dheri Branch (0047)

Jhatti Dheri Cross, District Mirpur, AJK
TEL: 05827-522564

E-mail: manager0047 @bankajk.com

Ladies Branch Mirpur (0054)

Haris Plaza Chowk, Shaheedan
Sector C-2 Mirpur, AJK

TEL: 05827-920405

FAX: 05827-920404

E-mail: manager0ls4@bankajk.com

Main Bazar Chaksawari Branch (0057)
Main Bozar Chaksawari, Tehsil &
District Mirpur, AJK

TEL: 05827-922444

E-mail: manager00S7@bankajk.com

www.bankaih.cam“
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Ratta Branch Mirpur (0058)

Allah Abad Market, Main Road Ratta,
Tehsil Dodyal, District Mirpur

TEL: 05827-923011

FaX: Q5827-923010

E-mail: managen0sf@bankajk.com

Moil Branch (0057%)
Main Bazar Meil, Tehsil & District Bhimber,
E-mail: manage0sY@bankajk.com

Kotli Zone

Koftli Branch [0005)

Poonch / Raowalpindi Road, Eotli
TEL: 05826 92024

FAX: 05824 920242

E-mail; managerdidSEbonkajk.com

Sehnsa Branch (0007)

hain Bozar Sehnsa, AJK

TEL: 05824 923062

FAX: 05824 923043

E-rmail: manager0d/ @bankajk.com

Nar Branch (0014)

tAGin Bazar Nar, District Kotli, AJK
TEL: 05824 921041

FaX: 05824 921040

E-mail: manager0 ] 48bankajk.com

Brafia Branch (0020)

Main Bazar Bratla, District Kotli, AJK
TEL: 05826 475094

FAX: 05826 475094

E-mail: managerd020@bankajk.com

Khui Ratta Branch (0021)

tAain Bazar Khui Ratla, District Kalli, AJK
TEL: 05824 921843

FAX: 05824 921862

E-mail: manager0? 1 @bankajk.com

Sarsawa Branch (0024)

hain Bazar Sarsawa, District Kobli, AJK
TEL: 038246 721143

FAX: 058246 721164

E-rmail; managerdd2é@ankajk.com

Khad-Gujran Branch (0031)
Main Bazar Khad-Gujran, District Kotli, AJK
TEL: 05824 922341

FAX: 05824 922342

E-mail: manager003] @bankajk.com

www.bankaﬂt.cam

Charhoi Branch (0035)

Main Bazar Charhol, District Kotli, AJK
TEL: D5826-922145

FAX, D5826-722165

E-muail: manager0034&bankajk.com

Tatta-Pani Branch (0042)

Main Bozar Tatta-Parni, District Kofli, AJK
TEL: D5824-921441

FaX: 05826-921441

E-mail: managerd042@ bankajk.com

Mi-Toti Branch (0044)

Main Barar Mi-toti, District Kolli, AJK
TEL: 05826-921845

FAX: DSB24-921845

E-mail: managerDDad@bankajk.com

Dhanna Branch (0048)

Dhanna Bazar, Disinct Kofli, AJK

TEL: 05826-921761

FAK: D5826-921761

E-mail: manager0048Ebankajk.com

Juna Branch (0051)

Main Bazar Juna, District Kotli, AJK
TEL: 05824 474441

E-mail: monogerDDs 1 @bankajk.com

Seharmandi Branch (0055)
Main Bozar Seharmmandi,

Tehsil Sehensa, Distict Kotli, AJK

TEL: 058246-723150

FAX: 05824-923150

E-mail: managerD0s5@bankajk.com

Jarahi Branch (0044)

Tehsil Dolya Jattan, District Kotli, AJK
TEL: 05826-723350

FAX, D5826-923351

E-mail: managerD0é4@bankajk.com

Gui Branch (0045)

District Kotfli, AJK

TEL: 0524-480447

E-mail: managerD0658 bankajk.com
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1.2

Infreduction

The employees entering into the service of Bank, both permanent and on confract shall have
to abide by the rules, regulations and are desired fo display highest standards of ethics,
honesty, integrity, efficiency, obedience, allegiance to the institution, faithfulness, adherence
to business practices and code of conduct. All employees must ensure that their actions and
conduct profect and promote the reputation and image of the Bank. Whatever an employee
does or says should not cause the Bank embarmrassment or bring the Bank into disrepute in the
public eye, especially as regards the impartiality and fairness of the Bank.

This Code:

a. Is mandatory for compliance by all employees, whether full or part time, employed,
directly or indirectly through g service contract and wherever located.,

b. Also applies as a general guideline to the Directors, mutatis mutandis.

c. Sets out maximum standards of good banking practices and lays down core values
relating to the laowful and ethical conduct of our business activities and provides
guidance to all. While the Code provides guidance on the aspects of integrity and
impartiality, it cannot and does not cover every situation an employee may encounter. If
an employee is uncertain about what to do in a particular situation, guidance should be
sought from the Reporting Officer or the concerned Manager,

d. Does not alter or replace the duties and responsibilities of some of the employees as
specifically defined in Banking and Corporate Laws applicable to the Bank.

e. May be amended or varied generally or specifically with the approval of the Board of
Directors for changes due to regulations, laws and practices.

f. Is not meant to be o complete record of our relationship with customers. Specific
products and services have their own terms and conditions, and these will continue fo
govern customer relationships with regard to the use of those products and services.

Each employee must be fully aware of the provisions of this Code
General Guidelines
Every employee shall:-

+ Conform to and abide by the Bank's rules and cbey all lawful orders and directives which
may, from time to time, be given by any person or persons under whose jurisdiction,
superintendence or control he may, for time being, be placed. He shall undertake at all
fimes to comply with all applicable laws, regulations and policies of the Bank.

»  Stand firmly against supporting the activities of any group or individual that unlawfully
threatens public order & safety. He shall not be a member of any political party, take part
in, subscribe in aid of or assist in any way, any political movement in and out of Azad
Jammu & Kashmir/Pakistan or relating to the affairs of Azad Jammu & Kashmir/Pakistan.
He shall not express views detrimental to the ideclogy, sovereignty of state of Azad
Jammu & Kashmir/Pakistan.

= Mot confess or otherwise interfere or use his influence in connection with or take part in
any election as a candidate of legislative/local bedy or issue statement or address the
electorate or in any manner announce or alow to be announced publicly as a
candidate or prospective candidate whether in Azad Jammu & Kashmir/Pakistan or
elsewhere. He may, however, exercise his right to vofe.

=  NMNot bring or attempt to bring political or other pressure/influence directly or indirectly to
bear on the authorities/superior officers or indulge in derogatory pamphleteering,
contribute, or write letters to news papers, anonymously or in his name with an intenf to

www.bankajk.com
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induce the authority fsuperior officers o act in a manner inconsistent with the rules, in respect
of any matters relating to appointment, promaotion, transfer, retirement, or for any other
conditions of service employment.

1.3

Integrity

Every employee shall:-

Conduct the highest standards of ethics, professional integrity and dignity in all dealings
with public, clients, investors, employees of the Bank. He shall not engage in acts of
discrediting the Bank. If he becomes aware of any iregularity that might affect the
interest of the Bank, he willinform the Bank immediately,

Avoid all such circumstances in which there is conflict of personal interest or appears to
be in conflict with the interests of the Bank or ils custormers.

Not use his status to seek personal gains from those doing business or seeking business
from BOAJK, or accept any gains if offered. He shall not accept any sort of gifts, favor,
benefits, frequency of which exceeds normal business contact from a customer,
constituent likely to have dealing with BOAJK and candidates for employment in the
Bank.

Mot accept any benefit from the estate of or a trust created by a customer or from an
estate or frust of which Bank's company or business unit is an executor, administrator or
trustee,

Conflict of Interast
Circumstances should be aveided in which personal interest conflicts or may
appear to conflict with the interest of the Bank or its customers,

Circumstances may arise where an employee, his / her spouse or family member
directly or indirectly holds a business interest which conflicts or may conflict with the
Bank's interest. In order to ensure that the Bank makes objective decisions, employee
must declare in advance such interest to the Management through the Reporting
Officer.

Any involvement in an outside activity or any external position held by an employee:
a. Must not give rise to any real or apparent conflict with a customer's interest

b, Must not adversely reflect on the Bank

<. Must not interfere with an employee's job performance

Employees must not negotiate or contract on behalf of the Bank with an enterprise in
which they have a direct or indirect interest,

Employees on the payroll of BOAJK must not undertake any other employment, whether
part fime, tfemporary or other, or act as consultant, director or pariner of ancther
enterprise except with the prior permission of the Managing Director of the Bank.

In case of doubt about whether a particular circumstance / situation would create
contlict of interest, employees should first consult their Reporting Officer or the
concerned Manager for seeking guidance before taking action.

Professionalism

Every employee shall:-

Serve the Bank honestly and faithfully and shall strictly serve Bank's affairs and the affairs of

its constituents. He shall use his utmost endeavor to promole the interest and goodwill of the
Bark and will show courtesy and attention in all acts/iransactions/corespondences.

www.bankaih.cam“
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1.6

1.7

1.8

www.bankajk.com

Know Your Customer

Commonly referred to as KYC, s the process to ensure that the Bank is not used for any unlawful
transactions. This is achieved by obtaining sufficient information about the customers to
reasonably satisfy us as to their reputation, their standing and the nature of their business
activities,

Effective use of "Know Your Customer” and customer's due diigence discourages money
laundering, which uses Banks as vehicles to disguise or "launder” the proceeds of criminal
activities. Invalvement in such activities undermines Bank's integrity. damages its reputation,
deters honest customers and leads the Bank to severe sanctions.

All employees, parficularly working in the customer services areas, must establish the identity of
every new customer from reliable identifying documents. For existing customers, they must
remain vigilant and aware of;

Activities not consistent with customer's business

Unusual characterstics or activities

Attempts to avoid reporting or record keeping requirement
Unusual or eratic movement of funds

apoo

A suspicion that funds transacted with the Bank stems from illegal activities, must be reported
internally to the Reporting Officer or concerned Manager.

Personal Investments

Personal transactions actual or intended transactions, usually in marketable investments, by
employees for their own account or in which employees have direct power to make decisions
or influence the decisions of persons connected with them by reason of family or business
relationship.

Employees must ensure that no conflict of interest arises between their personal transactions
and corporate and customer responsibilities. Employees must never attempt to use their position
in BOAJK to obtain an advantage to buy and sell investments.

Employees in doubt about the propriety of any proposed personal transaction should consult
their Reporting Officer or the concerned Manager.

Employees shall not, at any time, camry out:

a. Short sales of marketable securities or currencies or any other form of trading which is
speculative in nature in their own account or for the account of their spouse or family
members

b. Trading in shares, securities or cumrencies which involve improper use of unpublished, price
sensitive information for personal benefit

Relations with Regulators

Relationship with Regulators is one of the most important relations, which BOAJK maintains with
the aim of developing mutual confidence and frust.

Al employees must comply in letter and spirit, with legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to the activifies in which we engage.

In case a regulation appears to conflict with the provision of any cther regulation or laws, or
compliance appears to be impractical or against the general banking ethics, it must be
reported to the competent authority for appropriate action. Under no circumstances a
viclation of a regulation should be committed.

1.9

1.10

1.12

1.13
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Relationship with Competitors

Except in situations where the Bank is parlicipating in a fransaction with other Bank(s). no
employee shal have any agreement, understanding or arrangement with any competitor with
respect to pricing of services, profit rates and/or marketing policies. which may adversely affect
the Bank's business.

Gifts and Entertainment

Gifts, business entertainment or other benefits from a customer or a supplier/vendor, which
appear of may appear to compromise commercial relationships must not be accepted by the
employees.

Employees may, however, accept normal business entertainment or promotional items
appropriate to the circumstances with prior intimation to the Reporting Officer or the Manager.

In the event that a gift must be accepted for reason of customer's insistence and sensitivity of
relationship, such gifts must be surendered to the Head of Human Resources Division along with
reqasons of acceptance.

Under no circumstances an employee shall either direcily or indirectly accept any amount of
money, however small, as gift, gratuity, subscription or reward from any employee of the Bank,
customer, supplier or vendor,

Customers who wish to express gratitude for the services of BOAJK should be requested to send
a letter of appreciation,

Oiffice Attendance

Every employee shall attend the office in time and shall not leave the office before closing
hours. An employee coming late shall hold himself liakle for disciplinary action and to the debit
of one earmed leave from his leave account.

Corporate Culture

The Bank recognizes its staff members’ personal behavior and interaction with others as a vital
part of their duties in a particular position. In order to achieve the desired level of performance
and corporate objectives, preservation of congenial and professional working environment is
encouraged.

BOAJK seeks to create an environment where all persons are treated equally and with respect,
where person's rights are respected, efforts of staff encouraged and their achievements given
due recognition,

Customer Relationship

Knowing our customers and their needs is the key to our business success. Fairness, truthfulness
and fransparency govern our customer relationships in determining the transactional terms,
conditions, rights and obligations.

All employees must be committed to the continued development of excellence in service
culture in which BOAJK consistently seeks 1o exceed customers’ expectations. Employees should
seek to understand customers' financial circumstances and needs to be able to provide them
with the most suitable products and services.

All employees must ensure that any advice given to the customer is honest and fairly expressed
and restricted only 1o those services or products where the Bank has the relevant expertise and
authority.
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1.15

1.14
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Business/Work Ethics/Discipline
Every employee shall:-

*  Respect coleagues and work as a teamn. He shall at all times be courteous and not let any
personal differences affect his work, He shall freat every customer of BOAJK with respect
and courtesy.,

. mMake sure of good attendance and punctuglity and demonstrate a consistently good
record in this areq. For any absence during work hours during his placement to BOAJK
clients, he shall obtain written permission of his immediate supervisor.

. mMaintain standard of personal hygiene and dress appropriately for attendance at work.
Appearance must inspire confidence and convey a sense of professionalism.

*  |npersonresponsible for safe guarding both tangible and intangible assets of BOAJK that
are under his personal confrol. He shall not use Bank's asset for his personal benefits
except where permissible and customary.

*  Help in maintaining a healthy and productive work environment. Shall not engoge in
selling. distributing. using any illegal substance or being under influence of illegal drugs
while on job.

*  Ensure stict adherence to all health and safety policies as may be implemented from
time to time by the Bank,

+  Intimate BOAJK of any changes in the personal circumstances relating to his employment
or benefits,

*« Mot accept or seek any outside employment or office whether stipendiary or honorary.

=  Notundertake part time work for a private or public body or private person, or accept fee
thereof, during the service of the Bank.

Waomen at Work Place

BOAJK is destined to provide its employees, imespective of gender and without prejudices, a
working environment where they feel completely secured and safisfied to perform at the
optimum level. Being an equal opportunity employer, the Bank provides a progressive
environment for all its employees to progress and contribute regardiess of

their cast, creed. religion or gender. Female employees form a formidakle work force of the
Bank and essenticlly deserve complete protection. They are mutually respected and
protected by the fellow employees and the complaints of mistreatment, bias or prejudices are
rare. However, in order to benefit therm from State's commitment to effectively safeguard
them from perpetrators, the Bank has decided to adopt and enforce provisions of ‘The
Protection against Harassment of Women at the Workploce Act 20107, in all the branches and
offices, forthwith.

Maintaining Confidentiality
Confidential information comprises of:-

a.  any non-public, written or oral, information received directly or indirectly from a custorner,
praspective customer or a third party with the expectation that such information shall be
kept confidential and used solely for the business purposes of the customer, prospective
customer or the third party

b, BOAJK's proprietary information that includes any analyses or plans created or obtained
by any BOAJK Division, Department or Branch

All BOAJK employees have a duty to safeguard confidential information, which may come to
their possession during their day-to-day work. Respect for customer's private affairs, requires
the same care as does the protection of the Bank's own affairs or other interests.

1.17

1.17.1

1.17.2
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This duty of confidentiality invalves not divulging information to third parties other than in the
following circumstances:

i. Where the customer concerned has given permission to do so

i. Where the Bank is legally compelled to do so

ii. Where there is a duty to disclose information to public

iv. Where it is necessary for the Bank to present its case - eq. in court or in other
circumstances of a related nature

Confidentiality applies whether the information has been obtained from those to whom the
Bank does business or from sources within the Bank. All such information should only be used
for the purpose for which it is intended and must not be used for the personal benefit of an
employee, his/her spouse or family member.

Al employees must sign a declaration of confidentiality / secrecy and must comply with the
procedures and regulafions.

Dress Code

In order to keep the office environment professional, it is mandatory for all employees to follow
a strict dress code.

hMale
The following dress code is permissible for all male employees of the organization.

1. Dress Shirt and Trouser = In neutral colors, which must be clean and neatly pressed. Shirts
should be properly buttoned. Ties shall be properly knotted.

2. Shalwar Komeez - Although Shatwar Kameez is our national dress and people should be
encouraged to wear the national dress, extra care should be taken when opting to wear
Shalwar Kameez, as it can look very shabby if not properly maintained. Shalwar Kameez
should be in neutral colors, it must be clean and immaculately pressed. Kameez should
ke properly buttoned along-with waistcoats.

Female
The following dress code is permissible for all female employees of the organization.
Shabtwar, Komeez and Dupatta- In sulbtle color, clean and neatly pressed. Female staff should

avoid dressing garishly by avoiding jewellery and hair clips as much as possible. Small sized
ear-rings are permissible as part of jewellery.

1.18 Compliance

All BOAJK employees are fully committed to ensuring that all business decisions and actions
comply with all applicable laws and regulations and to observe good standards of behavior
and practice in accordance with the industry practices. Accordingly, all employees must
acquaint themselves with all applicable laws and regulations.

Senior Management will ensure that;

a. Allemployees are aware of this Code

b. Noemployee shall be asked to do anything that would confravene this Code

c. Queries and concerns arising under this Code will be dealt with propery and may be
addressed to the Human Resource Management Division at Head office
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1.19 Special Conditions
Every employee shall not indulge in any of the following:-

+«  Bomrow money from or in any way place himself under pecuniary obligations fo a broker,
moneylender, client, employee of the Bank or of any firm or person having dealing with
the Bank.

= Buy or sell stocks, shares or securities of any description without funds to meet the full cost
in the case of purchase or scripts for delivery in the case of sale. However he can make a
bonafide investment of his own funds in such stocks, shares and securities as he may wish
o buy.

+«  Lend money in his private capacify to a constituent of the Bank or have personal dealings
with a constifuent in the purchase or sale of bills of exchange, Government papers or any
other securities.

« Act as an agent for insurance company otherwise than as an agent for or on behalf of
the Bank.

1.20 Certification

Each employee in the Bank shall be required to read/review this Code each year and cerfify

inwriting that hefshe understands his/her responsitilities fo comply with the provisions sef forth
herein




Bank of Azad Jammuy & Eashmir
Head Office: Bank Square, Chatter. Domel,
Muzaffarabad, Azad Kashmir,

Ted: [11-11-2255, Fax: 05822-921983
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